Agenda
Meeting: Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

Wednesday 15 September 2021

Time:

10:00am

Place:

Conference Rooms 1&2, Ground
Floor, Palestra, 197 Blackfriars
Road, London, SE1 8NJ

Members
Anne McMeel (Chair)
Dr Lynn Sloman MBE (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Julian Bell

Kay Carberry CBE
Dr Mee Ling Ng OBE
Dr Nelson Ogunshakin OBE

Copies of the papers and any attachments are available on tfl.gov.uk How We Are
Governed.
This meeting will be open to the public and webcast live on TfL YouTube channel, except
for where exempt information is being discussed as noted on the agenda.
There is access for disabled people and induction loops are available. A guide for the
press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local government bodies,
including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available on
www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.
Further Information
If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special
facilities please contact: Sue Riley, Secretariat Officer; Email: Secretariat02@tfl.gov.uk.
For media enquiries please contact the TfL Press Office; telephone: 0343 222 4141; email:
PressOffice@tfl.gov.uk
Howard Carter, General Counsel
Tuesday 7 September 2021

Agenda
Audit and Assurance Committee
Wednesday 15 September 2021
1

Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements

2

Declarations of Interests
General Counsel
Members are reminded that any interests in a matter under discussion must be
declared at the start of the meeting, or at the commencement of the item of
business.
Members must not take part in any discussion or decision on such a matter and,
depending on the nature of the interest, may be asked to leave the room during
the discussion.

3

Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 7 June 2021
(Pages 1 - 10)
General Counsel
The Committee is asked to approve the minutes of the meeting of the
Committee held on 7 June 2021 and authorise the Chair to sign them.

4

Matters Arising and Actions List (Pages 11 - 14)
General Counsel
The Committee is asked to note the updated actions list.

External Audit Items
5

Annual Audit Letter (Pages 15 - 28)
Chief Finance Officer
The Committee is asked to note the letter.

2

Audit, Risk and Assurance Items
6

Risk and Assurance Quarter 1 Report 2021/22 (Pages 29 - 64)
Director of Risk and Assurance Report
The Committee is asked to note the report and the supplemental information on
Part 2 of the agenda.

7

Elizabeth Line Programme Assurance Quarter 1 Report 2021/22
(Pages 65 - 84)
Chief Finance Officer, Crossrail
The Committee is asked to note the report and the supplemental information on
Part 2 of the agenda.

8

Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group Quarterly
Report (Pages 85 - 96)
Director of Risk and Assurance
The Committee is asked to note the Programme Advisory Group’s Quarterly
Report and the management response.

Accounting and Governance
9

TfL Statement of Accounts Year Ended 31 March 2021 - Changes
Made Prior to Finalisation (Pages 97 - 346)
Chief Finance Officer
The Committee is asked to note the paper.

10

Effectiveness Review of the External Auditors (Pages 347 - 350)
Chief Finance Officer
The Committee is asked to note the paper and the supplemental information on
Part 2 of the agenda.

3

11

Appointment of External Auditors (Pages 351 - 354)
Chief Finance Officer
The Committee is asked to approve the proposal to opt in to the national
scheme for the appointment of auditors for a period of five years
commencing with the audit of the 2023/24 financial year.

12

Freedom of Information Update (Pages 355 - 364)
General Counsel
The Committee is asked to note the paper.

13

Finance Control Environment Trend Indicators and Transformation
Update (Pages 365 - 372)
Chief Finance Officer
The Committee is asked to note the paper.

14

Register of Gifts and Hospitality for Members and Senior Staff
(Pages 373 - 378)
General Counsel
The Committee is asked to note the paper.

15

Enterprise Risk Update - Major Security Incident (ER4)
(Pages 379 - 380)
Director of Compliance, Policing, Operations and Security
The Committee is asked to note the paper and the supplemental information on
Part 2 of the agenda.

16

Members' Suggestions for Future Discussion Items (Pages 381 - 384)
General Counsel
The Committee is asked to note the forward plan and is invited to raise any
suggestions for future discussion items for the forward plan and for informal
briefings.

4

17

Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent
The Chair will state the reason for urgency of any item taken.

18

Date of Next Meeting
Wednesday, 1 December 2021 at 10.00am.

19

Exclusion of Press and Public
The Committee is recommended to agree to exclude the press and public from
the meeting, in accordance with paragraphs 3, 5 & 7 of Schedule 12A to the
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in order to consider the following
items of business.

Agenda Part 2
20

Risk and Assurance Quarter 1 Report 2021/22 (Pages 385 - 406)
Director of Risk and Assurance
Exempt supplemental information relating to the item on Part 1.

21

Elizabeth Line Programme Assurance Quarter 1 Report 2021/22
(Pages 407 - 416)
Chief Finance Officer, Crossrail
Exempt supplemental information relating to the item on Part 1.

22

Effectiveness Review of the External Auditors (Pages 417 - 420)
Chief Finance Officer
Exempt supplemental information relating to the item on Part 1.

5

23

Enterprise Risk Update - Major Security Incident (ER4)
(Pages 421 - 430)
Director of Compliance, Policing, Operations and Security
Exempt supplemental information relating to the item on Part 1.

6

Agenda Item 3
Transport for London
Minutes of the Audit and Assurance Committee
Teams Virtual Meeting
10.00am, Monday 7 June 2021
Members
Anne McMeel
Dr Lynn Sloman MBE
Cllr Julian Bell
Kay Carberry CBE
Dr Mee Ling Ng OBE
Dr Nelson Ogunshakin OBE

Chair
Vice-Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member (until Minute 39/06/21)

Executive Committee
Howard Carter

General Counsel

Staff
Patrick Doig
Andy Ferrar
Lorraine Humphrey
Maureen Kirk

Interim Statutory Chief Finance Officer
Head of Finance Controls and Systems (for Minute 39/06/21)
Interim Director of Risk and Assurance
Senior Internal Audit Manager (for Minute 36/06/21)

Richard Mullings
Rachel Shaw
Mike Shirbon
Stuart Westgate
Sue Riley

Head of Counter-Fraud and Corruption
Head of Financial Accounting and Tax
Head of Integrated Assurance
Head of Programme Assurance, Crossrail (for Minute 36/06/21)
Secretariat

Also In Attendance
Karl Havers
Janet Dawson
Jeanne-Marie Van Coller
Caroline Mulley
Jonathan Simcock

25/06/21

Partner, Ernst & Young
Associate Partner, Ernst & Young
Partner, Ernst & Young
Associate Partner, Ernst & Young
Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group, Member (for
Minute 29/06/21)

Apologies for Absence and Chair’s Announcements

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, particularly Janet Dawson from EY, who
would succeed Karl Havers as TfL’s lead audit partner, and Jonathon Simcock from the
Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group (IIPAG), who was attending in place
of Alison Munro and Joanne White. She also welcomed and congratulated Patrick Doig,
who had been appointed interim statutory Chief Finance Officer following the departure of
Tony King, and congratulated Lorraine Humphrey, on her recent appointment as interim
Director of Risk and Assurance.
The meeting was being broadcast live on YouTube, except for the discussion of the
information on Part 2 of the agenda, which was exempt from publication.
Page 1

Dr Nelson Ogunshakin OBE would be leaving the meeting at 11am. Apologies had also
been received from Alison Munro and Joanne White, IIPAG, for whom Jonathan Simcock
was deputising. Simon Kilonback, Chief Finance Officer and Rachel McLean, Chief
Finance Officer, Crossrail had also given apologies.
The flexibility of meetings regulations, which applied to TfL from August 2020 and enabled
it to take decisions via video-conference, expired on 6 May 2021. As staff and Members
were unable to meet in person due to social distancing measures, any decisions required
would be taken by the Chair, exercising Chair’s Action, following the discussion of the
item with Members.
The Chair reminded those present that safety was paramount at TfL and encouraged
Members to raise any safety issues during discussions on a relevant item or with TfL staff
after the meeting. No matters were raised.
At the close of the meeting, Members were due to meet informally with EY for the annual
informal discussion.
The Chair confirmed that under section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972,
she had agreed that two items marked to follow on the agenda and published on 28 May
2021 would be considered as matters of urgency. The items were Ernst & Young Report
to Those Charged with Governance and TfL Statement of Accounts for Year Ended 31
March 2021. They were accepted as urgent as Members had to approve both reports for
inclusion in the 2020/21 Annual Report and Accounts to be approved at the Board
meeting on 28 July 2021.

26/06/21

Declarations of Interest

The Chair declared that, as Vice-Chair of the Elizabeth Line Committee, she would not
Chair the meeting for the discussion on the Elizabeth line item (Minute 36/06/21) and the
Vice-Chair of the Audit and Assurance Committee would Chair the meeting. Dr Nelson
Ogunshakin OBE was also a member of the Elizabeth Line Committee.
Dr Nelson Ogunshakin OBE had been appointed as a non-executive director to the Board
of the Connected Places Catapult, from 1 May 2021.
Members confirmed that their declarations of interests, as published on tfl.gov.uk, were
up to date and there were no additional interests that related specifically to items on the
agenda.

27/06/21

Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 17 March
2021

The Chair, following consultation with the Committee, approved the minutes of the
meeting held on 17 March 2021 as a correct record, subject to a minor typo
amendment to paragraph 20/03/21. The minutes would be provided to the Chair for
signature at a future date.

Page 2

28/06/21

Matters Arising, Actions List and Use of Delegated Authority

Howard Carter introduced the paper, which set out progress against actions agreed at
previous meetings of the Committee and use of delegated authority.
As agreed at the previous meeting, a copy of the final EY report, with reduced redactions,
on the Silvertown Tunnel Project, had been circulated to Members and published on the
TfL website. Copies of further correspondence received from Stop the Silvertown Tunnel
Coalition had also been circulated to Committee Members in advance of the meeting.
Karl Havers would confirm if any additional points needed to be considered with the
Committee but was not of the view that the correspondence raised any new issues.
[Action: Karl Havers]
The Chair reminded staff that TfL would need to monitor delivery on the project benefits,
as set out in the business case and ensure continued community engagement.
The Committee noted the Actions List and the use of Chair’s Action.

29/06/21

Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group
Quarterly Report

Jonathan Simcock presented the Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group
(IIPAG) quarterly report and Lorraine Humphrey presented the management response.
The Committee encouraged TfL to carry out extensive benchmarking work, including
cities with significantly differing legislative powers for alternative income options, which
could support the funding discussions with the Department for Transport.
The change programme of the Programme Management Office was ongoing and would
be closely monitored by IIPAG. The IIPAG work plan was reviewed on a regular basis
and any significant changes to the funding agreement would be reflected in an updated
plan and reported to both the Programmes Investment Committee and this Committee.
The Committee noted the report and the management response.

30/06/21

EY Report to Those Charged with Governance

As provided for under section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Chair
agreed that the item would be considered as a matter of urgency as Members were
required to approve the 2020/21 Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with
statutory deadlines.
Karl Havers introduced the report on the key risks addressed during the course of the
audit.

Page 3

EY would seek to confirm that coronavirus pandemic related costs were consistent
between Crossrail and TfL and allocated in a clear and consistent way. An update on
climate related reporting would be submitted to the next meeting. Improved procurement
controls instigated by TfL would ensure that EY had no further concerns as long as they
remained effective.
The impact on EY’s value for money assessment was problematic due to TfL’s current
short-term funding arrangements, which made financial planning and any assessment
very uncertain. As well as the financial impact and uncertainty for TfL of the stop/start
funding negotiations, this also created policy challenges, as well as an additional
pressure on senior staffing time and resources.
Costs were being managed closely to reduce the financial impact on the organisation,
with a clear focus on operational safety. Benefits and opportunities that had arisen due to
the pandemic would continue to be adopted, such as enhanced cleaning, more efficient
site working and new ways of working.
Patrick Doig was confident that TfL could meet the conditions of the current funding
agreement and this agreement did not have a material impact on the 2020/21 accounts.
Any changes to expectations of future funding would be reflected in the final accounts
submitted to the Board meeting of 28 July 2021.
The Chair thanked staff and EY for their hard work in producing the Annual Accounts,
despite the difficult circumstances, and hoped that the current Government approach to
funding negotiations at a very late stage would not be continued and a more considerate
and pragmatic approach adopted.
The Committee noted the report and noted the omissions from the 2019/20
Independent Auditor’s Report to Transport for London as disclosed in the report.
The Chair confirmed she was satisfied that the omissions outlined did not
materially impact on the conclusions of the audit opinion or on the information
already publicly available in respect of the audit, and that as a result there was no
requirement for the 2019/20 Auditor’s Report to be re-issued.

31/06/21

EY Letter on Independence and Objectivity

Karl Havers introduced the report on the independence and objectivity of EY.
The Committee noted the paper.

32/06/21

EY Report on Non-Audit Fees for Six Months Ended 31
March 2021

Karl Havers introduced the report on fees billed by EY for non-audit services.
The Committee noted the report.

Page 4

33/06/21

Annual Audit Fee 2020/21

Patrick Doig introduced the paper setting out the annual audit fee proposed by EY for the
year ending 31 March 2021.
The Committee noted the paper.

34/06/21

Risk and Assurance Quarter 4 Report 2020/21

Lorraine Humphrey presented the quarterly update of work of the Risk and Assurance
Directorate. Mike Shirbon and Richard Mullings also presented for this item.
Lorraine Humphrey confirmed that she was working with stakeholders to obtain feedback
on Risk and Assurance performance and part of that work will consider how to improve
the numbers of customer feedback responses and whether other parts of the Directorate
may be able to use them.
Fraud referrals to the team, despite the coronavirus pandemic, remained high. Cyberenabled crime had increased during the pandemic against individuals and businesses
alike and the team had been raising awareness of the risks of this type of criminality
against employees both at work and at home. Detection rates remained high as a result
of the quality of investigations undertaken and establishing of key stakeholder
relationships across TfL and with law enforcement.
The potential for ‘timesheet fraud’ within the supply chain was noted as an area of
concern, following the closure of a London Underground fraud case involving a subcontractor. This type of fraud was difficult and challenging to manage, and controls in
place with regards to regular ‘spot’ checks and analysis of timesheets and associated
documents was key to prevention and detection.
Risk interconnectivity would be presented to a future meeting, including providing an
understanding of effects of risk scenario planning to underpin this work.
[Action: Nico Lategan]
The Committee noted the report and the supplemental information on Part 2 of the
agenda.

35/06/21

Risk and Assurance Annual Report 2020/21

Lorraine Humphrey introduced the annual report of the Risk and Assurance Directorate.
An evaluation of the increase in poorly controlled and requires improvement audit ratings
would be carried out and an analysis of any emerging themes reported back to a future
meeting, including any trends in high priority recommendations.
[Action: Lorraine Humphrey]
Organisational issues around staff recruitment and retention were being addressed by the
Executive Committee.
The Committee noted the report.

Page 5

36/06/21

Elizabeth Line Programme Assurance Quarter 4 Report
2020/21

The Chair advised that, as Vice-Chair of the Elizabeth Line Committee, she would not
Chair the discussion for this item. The Vice-Chair chaired the meeting for this item.
Stuart Westgate and Maureen Kirk introduced the overview of assurance activity for the
Quarter 4 Report 2020/21.
Lorraine Humphrey was in discussion with Rachel McLean to ensure clear lines of
responsibility for end to end assurance of the Elizabeth line and to avoid duplication of
assurance by the various bodies involved. Information, expertise and good practice in
areas of risk, assurance and fraud activity were shared across both organisations.
The Committee noted the paper and the supplemental information on Part 2 of the
agenda.

37/06/21

TfL Statement of Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March
2021

As provided for under section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Chair
agreed that the item would be considered as a matter of urgency, as Members were
required to approve the 2020/21 Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with
statutory deadlines.
Patrick Doig thanked Tony King, EY and Finance staff for their hard work in producing the
accounts in accordance with statutory deadlines, despite the challenging circumstances
and this was endorsed by the Chair on behalf of the Committee.
The Committee:
1

noted the draft Statement of Accounts and the Remuneration Report and
note that the statutory Chief Finance Officer may make adjustments arising
from the ongoing audit work prior to submission to the Board. Any material
adjustments arising will be reported to the next meeting of the Committee;

2

recommended that the Board confirm its overall approval of the provision of
an ongoing guarantee by Transport Trading Limited of all the outstanding
liabilities of those of its subsidiary companies listed below, such guarantee
enabling those subsidiaries to be exempt from the need to have their
accounts audited:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)

Woolwich Arsenal Rail Enterprises Limited;
City Airport Rail Enterprises Limited;
London Underground Limited;
LUL Nominee BCV Limited;
LUL Nominee SSL Limited;
Docklands Light Railway Limited;
Tube Lines Limited;
Rail for London Limited;
Rail for London (Infrastructure) Limited;
Page 6

(x)
(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv)
(xv)
(xvi)
(xvii)
(xviii)
(xix)
(xx)
(xxi)
(xxii)
(xxiii)
3

noted the ongoing approval given in respect of the provision of a guarantee
to the following subsidiary companies with effect from the financial period
ended 31 March 2021:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

4

Tramtrack Croydon Limited;
London Buses Limited;
London Bus Services Limited;
London River Services Limited;
Transport for London Finance Limited;
Victoria Coach Station Limited;
TTL Properties Limited;
TTL Blackhorse Road Properties Limited;
TTL Earls Court Properties Limited;
TTL Landmark Court Properties Limited;
TTL Kidbrooke Properties Limited;
TTL Northwood Properties Limited;
TTL South Kensington Properties Limited; and
TTL Southwark Road Properties Limited;

TTL Build to Rent Properties Limited;
TTL FCHB Properties Limited; and
TTL Wembley Park Properties Limited;

noted that:
(i)

as a result of the application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, our
auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, require that letters of financial support
previously provided by Transport for London in respect of the liabilities
of its subsidiaries be re-signed annually by TfL’s Chief Finance Officer;
and

(ii)

Board approval for the issue of such letters was granted when the
subsidiaries were first established or acquired.

38/06/21

Review of Governance and the Annual Governance
Statement for Year Ended 31 March 2021

Howard Carter presented the annual review of compliance with the TfL Code of
Governance in 2020/21.
The Chair, following consultation with the Committee, noted the paper and:
1

approved the Annual Governance Statement, as set out in Appendix 1 of the
paper, for signing by the Chair of TfL and the Commissioner, for inclusion in
the 2020/21 Annual Report and Accounts; and

2

noted the progress against the 2020/21 improvement plan, as set out in
Appendix 2 and the plan for 2021/22, as set out in Appendix 3.

Page 7

39/06/21

Finance Control Environment Trend Indicators

Andy Ferrar presented the quarterly update on the financial control environment
indicators.
The numbers of non-competitive transactions (NCTs) were small and limited to specific
contract spends with a continued trend to reduce NCTs. Automated postings had
significantly reduced due to the decline in cash transactions during the coronavirus
pandemic but would expect to rise again once visitors returned to London.
The Committee welcomed the progress to date.
The Committee noted the paper.

40/06/21

Legal Compliance Report (1 October 2020 – 31 March 2021)

Howard Carter introduced the Legal Compliance Report for 1 October 2020 - 31 March
2021.
Further details would be provided as to the Health and Safety Executive investigation
referred to in paragraph 5.3 of the report.
[Action: Howard Carter]
The Committee noted the report.

41/06/21

Register of Gifts and Hospitality for Members and Senior
Staff

Howard Carter presented the quarterly update on the register of gifs and hospitality for
Members and senior staff.
The Committee noted the paper.

42/06/21

Members’ Suggestions for Future Discussion Items

Howard Carter presented the current forward plan for the Committee.
The Committee noted the paper.

43/06/21

Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent

There was no urgent business.

44/06/21

Date of Next Meeting

The next scheduled meeting was due to be held on Wednesday 15 September 2021 at
10.00am.
Page 8

45/06/21

Exclusion of Press and Public

The Chair, following consultation with the Committee, agreed to exclude the press
and public from the meeting, in accordance with paragraphs 3, 5 and 7 of Schedule
12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in order to consider the
following items of business: Risk and Assurance Quarter 4 Report 2020/21; and
Elizabeth Line Programme Assurance Quarter 4 Report 2020/21.

The meeting closed at 12.55pm.

Chair:

Date:

Page 9

[page left intentionally blank]

Agenda Item 4
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Matters Arising and Actions List

This paper will be considered in public
1

Summary

1.1

This paper informs the Committee of progress against actions agreed at previous
meetings.

1.2

Appendix 1 sets out the progress against actions agreed at previous meetings.

2

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the Actions List .

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1 - Actions List
List of Background Papers:
None

Contact Officer:
Email:

Howard Carter, General Counsel
howardcarter@tfl.gov.uk

Page 11

[page left intentionally blank]

Appendix 1
Audit and Assurance Committee Actions List (to be reported to the meeting on 15 September 2021)
Actions from the meeting held on 7 June 2021
Minute
No.

Item/Description

Action By

Target Date

Status/Note

28/06/21

Matters Arising, Actions List and Use of
Delegated Authority
EY to confirm if any additional points needed to
be considered in the final EY report on the
Silvertown Tunnel project.

Karl Havers

15 September
2021 meeting

No additional issues identified by EY.
Complete.

15 September
2021 meeting

Update included in Risk and Assurance
Quarterly report on agenda. Complete.

15 September
2021meeting

Update included in Risk and Assurance
Quarterly report on agenda. Complete.

Following the
meeting

Information circulated. Complete.

34/06/21
Page 13
35/06/21

40/06/21

Risk and Assurance Quarter 4 Report 2020/21
Risk interconnectivity to be presented to a future Nico Lategan
meeting, including providing an understanding of
effects of risk scenario planning to underpin this
work.
Risk and Assurance Annual Report 2020/21
An evaluation of the increase in poorly controlled Lorraine
and requires improvement audit ratings to be
Humphrey
carried out and an analysis of any emerging
themes reported back to a future meeting,
including any trends in high priority
recommendations.
Legal Compliance Report (1 October 2020 –
31 March 2021)
Further details to be provided as to the Health
and Safety Executive investigation referred to in
paragraph 5.3 of the report.

Howard
Carter

Actions from previous meetings:
Minute
No.

Item/Description

09/03/21

Integrated Assurance Plan 2021/22
Staff to consider how best assurance work on
Rachel
Enterprise Risk 14 (The Opening of the Elizabeth McLean/
Line) could be integrated as part of the transition Mushtaq Ali
phase of Crossrail into TfL.

14/03/21

Action By

Target Date

Status/Note

15 September
2021 meeting

Update provided in the Risk and
Assurance and Elizabeth line quarterly
reports on agenda. Complete.

Page 14

Finance and Business Services – End to End
Processes
A visit to be arranged for the Chair to meet the
staff and see the work in progress, when
appropriate.

Andy Ferrar

When
appropriate

Pending.

Once the Transformation programme was
complete, staff to consider how best to report
back on metric measurements.

Andy Ferrar/
Maureen
Jackson

15 September
2021 meeting

Update provided in Finance Control
Environment Trend Indicators report on
agenda. Complete.

Agenda Item 5
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Annual Audit Letter

1

Summary

1.1

To inform the Committee of the status of the Annual Audit Letter issued by
EY.

2

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the letter.

3

Background

3.1

The Annual Audit Letter is prepared by EY and summarises their conclusions
on the Annual Statement of Accounts and Value for Money. This letter is
issued at the conclusion of the annual audit process and was circulated to
Members on 22 July 2021, prior to submission to the meeting of the TfL Board
on 28 July 2021.

4

Update

4.1

EY have issued an unqualified opinion on the TfL financial statements. Their
opinion, as per 2019/20, includes a paragraph on material uncertainty relating
to the availability of funding to deliver current operational and capital plans. As
described in more detail in an updated going concern note to the Accounting
Policies section of the financial statements, this sets out that there continues
to be significant uncertainty as to the level of longer-term future funding to be
received from the Government. These uncertainties cast doubt over TfL’s
ability both to continue operating the level of services currently provided and
to continue with all projects currently included in the capital investment plan. If
projects or non-essential elements of in-progress projects are not funded, or if
changes in services provided are required, there could be a possible
impairment of carrying values at 31 March 2021, which are not reflected in the
financial statements.

4.2

EY’s opinion on Value for Money is qualified in two respects:
(a)

without a longer-term funding agreement in place, TfL is obliged to
make short-term decisions, restricting its ability to make progress on
and commit to key long-term priorities set by policy makers. This
means that TfL is not obtaining the best value for money due to a lack
of clarity over long-term funding; and

(b)

In respect of a series of weakness identified by management and
Internal Audit in relation to procurement processes in 2018/19.

Page 15

Implementation of an action plan to address these matters commenced
during 2019/20, but corrective actions were only completed by 31
March 2021 and were not all in place during the entirety of 2020/21.
4.3

As at the date of the Audit Letter, EY have not yet undertaken the procedures
required by the National Audit Office on the accuracy of the consolidation
pack prepared by the Corporation for Whole of Government Accounts papers.
These procedures are expected to be undertaken between September and
November 2021 in line with the revised timetable set by HM Treasury.

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1 - EY's Annual Audit Letter 2020/21
List of Background Papers:
None

Contact:
Email:

Patrick Doig, Statutory Chief Finance Officer
patrickdoig@tfL.gov.uk

Page 16

Appendix 1

Transport for London
Audit results report
Year ending 31 March 2021
21 July 2021
Page 17

Private and Confidential

21 July 2021

Transport for London
Palestra
197 Blackfriars Road
UK SW1H 0BD
Dear Members of the Audit and Assurance Committee,
2020/21 Audit results report
This report summarises our final conclusions in relation to Transport for London Group (TfL Group) financial position and results of operations for the year ended 31 March 2021 in
respect of those matters that were not concluded at the time of our previous report issued 7 June 2021. The only work outstanding at time of writing of this report are the final
procedural matters such as formal Board sign off, receipt of letter of representation and update of subsequent events to the date of singing, which are not expected to give rise to
further issues to report. This report should be read in conjunction with our report of 7 June 2021.

Page 18

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the 2021 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements. This report, together with our report of 7
June 2021, contains our findings related to the areas of audit emphasis, our views on TfL Group accounting policies and judgements and material internal control findings. Each year
sees further enhancements to the level of audit challenge and the quality of evidence required to achieve the robust professional scepticism that society expects. We thank the
management team for supporting this process.
The TfL Group and Corporation audits form part of our framework contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. We have undertaken our work in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice, auditing standards and other professional requirements.
We are also the auditors of TfL’s subsidiaries, Transport Trading Limited Group (TTL Group) and Crossrail Limited. TfL’s subsidiaries are subject to the accounting requirements of
the Companies Act 2006. We have undertaken our work in accordance with the requirements of UK auditing standards.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit & Assurance Committee, Board of Directors and management. It is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.
Yours faithfully

Karl Havers
Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

2

Contents
01

Executive
Summary

02

Summary of Audit
Differences

Page 19
The contents of this report are subject to the terms and conditions of our appointment as set out in our TTL engagement letter of 06/03/2018.
In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the via the PSAA website (www.PSAA.co.uk).
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and
what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment (updated February 2017)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the
Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit and Assurance Committee and management of TfL in accordance with our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Audit and Assurance Committee
and management of TfL those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit and
Assurance Committee and management of TfL for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

3

Page 20

01 Executive Summary
4

Executive Summary
Financial statements opinion
In our Audit Plan we identified a number of key areas of focus for our audit of the financial report of the TfL Group. There have been no changes to the key areas of focus identified in our
June 2021 Audit and Assurance Committee paper.
In our June 2021 Audit and Assurance Committee paper we reported and concluded on the following areas of audit focus:
Management override of controls, required by ISA (UK and Ireland) 240
Inappropriate capitalisation or potential impairment of capital projects including capital accruals
Leases (IFRS 16)
►
Significant accounting estimates – including complexity of provisions
►
Deferred Capital Grants (TTL)
►
We have no further matters to report with regards to these areas of focus.
►
►

Page 21

With regards to other areas of audit focus identified in our Audit and Assurance Committee paper, where audit procedures were still in progress in June, we summarise our conclusions
below:
Going concern, including TfL and Crossrail funding
Subsequent to our reporting in June 2021, an extension to the Extraordinary funding and financing agreement was agreed to 11 December 2021. The funding agreement consists of
£1.08bn to support essential services up until 11 December 2021. We note that the funding agreement is subject to several terms and conditions, the following are the agreed conditions
to be delivered in 2021/22:
►

Delivery of further operating efficiencies of at least £300m in 2021/22 through appropriate revenue sources and/ or cost saving initiatives.

►

TfL will commit to set aside at least £100m within the 2021 Funding Period to continue the delivery of healthy streets and active travel programmes.

►

TfL will maintain its changes to its expenditure authorisation processes through the Financial Commitment Oversight Group.

►

TfL will continue with its existing plan to increase fares in line with their Business Planning assumption of an overall fares increase of RPI+1% on fares under the Mayor’s control in
January 2022.

We have discussed this funding agreement with senior management and obtained details of the plans to implement the above conditions in the 21/22 period. We have assessed
whether the terms and conditions are achievable by TfL by understanding key assumptions underpinning these matters and the associated budget planning for this period. In particular
we have understood the various sensitivities to key assumptions, such as passenger demand, control of staff costs and capital projects.
We have understood the options TfL is pursuing to deliver these matters and given the commitment from the DfT to work collaboratively with TfL over the funding period and that it is
understood that it is likely that a further short term funding agreement will be put in place to cover the period from 11 December 2021 to 31 March 2022, whilst management continue
to with the DfT to secure a longer term funding arrangement.
5

Executive Summary
Financial statements opinion
Going concern, including TfL and Crossrail funding (continued)
In particular, the plan continues to make significant assumptions in respect of capital projects, with assumptions over the timing of work, delayed commencement or cancellation of
certain new projects. We have questioned the scope of these key judgements and in particular the impact of the funding arrangements and challenges on ‘in-progress’ projects.
Management has continued to represent that for all ‘in-progress’ projects at 31 March 2021, with a value carried forward in the balance sheet, that these projects will be completed,
within the funding options available, without any impairment of the spend prior to 31 March 2021. We have included additional wording in our letter of representation in respect of this
point.
As reported previously, the fact that the current funding agreements are short term and cover a period of less than twelve months from the approval of the financial statements, our
conclusion remains that there is material uncertainty surrounding the funding of the Group and therefore its ability to continue to operate the current level of services, including the
planned capital programme post the agreed funding period, however we agree that it is reasonable to prepare TfL’s financial statements on a going concern basis. This is included in our
opinion.
Further we note that, as previously reported, in the context of value for money, the short term nature of the funding agreements that have been reached inhibits TfL’s ability to deliver
the transport strategy for London in the most cost effective manner.

Page 22

Inappropriate Revenue recognition, required by ISA (UK & Ireland) 240
We have completed the remaining procedures including the assessment of conclusions within KPMG’s ISAE3402 report. We have concluded that the basis on which fares revenue is
recognised is reasonable. The judgements made related to fares revenue in the financial statements have been appropriately described.
Complexity of accounting for TfL and TTL property portfolios
We have received the final valuation report and completed our outstanding procedures. We have concluded that the property valuations are within an acceptable range. We concluded
that the disclosure set out in notes to the financial statements provide the users with an appropriate explanation of the judgements and estimates relating to property valuation.
Pension accounting
At the time of our June 2021 report, final reports had not been received from the pension schemes and actuaries in respect of year end balances. These have now all been received and
reconciled to the financial statements accounting and disclosures. During this process a difference between the original pension scheme asset values and the final higher position
included in the TfL Pension Fund accounts was identified of £76.5m – as this asset value is now confirmed, this represents an uncorrected error. In the prior year a similar item arose of
£11m lower asset value. This impacts TfL consolidated and entity financial statements. We expect that all errors will be corrected by management, however management has concluded
that this item is not material, impacts other comprehensive income rather than income statement, does not impact usable reserves and it is too late to amend the financial statements.
We have recorded this as an uncorrected error on our summary of audit differences, which is attached to our letter of representation and ask that the Board consider this position and
conclude on the uncorrected error and the reasons for not adjusting if that is the final position.
Climate related risk
We have completed the remaining procedures with regards to climate related risk. We have reviewed the associated narrative in the Annual report and found no matters to report.

6

Executive Summary
Value for money
We have reported on value for money in our June 2021 Audit and Assurance Committee paper. As noted above, since that date a further short term funding agreement has been put in
place, this does not however address the issues previously raised arising from the short term nature of funding. Our conclusion therefore remains the same as reported in June, that there
are arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness, except in relation to two areas:
►

The uncertainty with regards to a long-term funding agreement and impact thereof on planning and resource management to maintain service delivery; and

►

An action plan was put in place to address the weaknesses identified in relation to procurement controls, however it was not effective for the full financial year due to the impact of
COVID-19 resulting in the need to prioritise exceptional protocols during the pandemic, rather than business as usual changes from the existing action plan.

Audit differences

Page 23

In addition to audit differences reported in our June 2021 Audit and Assurance Committee paper, we have identified the following disclosure audit difference:
►

Gross rental income and gross rental expenditure are disclosed as within the service areas, however per the CIPFA code it should be disclosed as financing income and expenditure.

Management has concluded that no adjustment will be made for this amount and we have concluded that this misstatement is not material for the users of the financial statements.

Whole of government accounts
We have not yet initiated our audit for Whole of Government (WGA) requirements. We will commence our work on the WGA following approval of the financial statements.

Audit Certificate
The audit certificate is issued to demonstrate that the full requirements of the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice have been discharged for the relevant audit year. We
expect to issue the audit certificate once the work on Whole of Government Accounts is complete.

7

Executive Summary
Independence
Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified on main audit areas, i.e. grant claims and debt issuance, we
therefore confirm that EY is independent and the objectivity and independence of Karl Havers, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been
compromised.
We reported separately on our independence to the Audit & Assurance Committee on 7 June 2021, there has been no change to our independence since that date.

Page 24
8

Page 25

02 Summary of audit differences
9

Audit Differences
Summary of unadjusted differences
In addition we highlight the following misstatements to the financial statements and/or disclosures which were not corrected by management. We request that these uncorrected
misstatements be corrected or a rationale as to why they are not corrected be considered and approved by the Audit & Assurance Committee and provided within the Letter of
Representation:
Uncorrected misstatements 2021
(£million)

Effect on the
current period:

Net assets
(Decrease)/Increase

Impact on
reserves

Total
comprehensive
income
Debit/(Credit)

Assets current
Assets non
Liabilities Liabilities nonDebit/ current Debit/ current Debit/ current Debit/
(Credit)
(Credit)
(Credit)
(Credit)

Impact on
brought
forward
reserves

(88)

77

11

(32)

(5)

Errors:

•

Pension asset valuation differences

Page 26

Judgemental differences:
•

IFRS16 – rolling stock – rate used at each delivery date

(0)

37

Impact of difference arising in prior year:
•

Difference in accounting for certain contract incentive payments*

2

Total effect of uncorrected misstatements (before tax)

86

Less: tax effect at current year marginal rate

(0)

Cumulative effect of uncorrected misstatements before turnaround effect

86

Turnaround effect of prior year uncorrected misstatements
Cumulative effect of uncorrected misstatements, after turnaround effect

49
86

(51)
45

(45)

6
92

Disclosure misstatements
We have identified the following disclosure audit difference:
►

Gross rental income £77.1m and gross rental expenditure £55.7m are disclosed as within the service areas, however per the CIPFA code it should be disclosed as financing income and
expenditure.

* This difference was identified in the prior year audit and arises in the accounting for payments made between 2013 and 2018 on a specific contract – our view is that these should have
been capitalised and depreciated over the asset life.
10

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory services.
The insights and quality services we deliver help build trust and
confidence in the capital markets and in economies the world over. We
develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver on our promises to all of
our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better
working world for our people, for our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more, of the
member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of which is a
separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients. For more information
about our organization, please visit ey.com.
© 2021 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.
ED None
This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not intended to be
relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer to your advisors for
specific advice.

Page 27

ey.com

[page left intentionally blank]

Agenda Item 6
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Risk and Assurance Quarter 1 Report 2021/22

This paper will be considered in public
1

Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of the work completed by the
Risk and Assurance Directorate during Quarter 1 of 2021/22 (Q1), the work in
progress and planned to start, and other information about the Directorate’s
activities.
1.2 A paper is included on Part 2 of the agenda, which contains exempt supplemental
information that is exempt from publication by virtue of paragraphs 3, 5 and 7 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 in that it contains information
relating to the business and financial affairs of TfL, that is commercially sensitive
and likely to prejudice TfL’s commercial position; and information relating to
ongoing fraud and criminal investigations and the disclosure of this information is
likely to prejudice the prevention or detection of crime and the apprehension or
prosecution of offenders. Any discussion of that exempt information must take
place after the press and public have been excluded from this meeting.

2

Recommendation

2.1 The Committee is asked to note the report and the supplemental information
on Part 2 of the agenda.

3

Director Update

3.1 This is the first quarterly report for 2021/22 to the Committee highlighting the
activities of the five teams making up the Risk and Assurance Directorate,
namely: Enterprise Risk; Internal Audit; Integrated Assurance; Project Assurance;
and Counter-fraud and Corruption.
3.2 In this quarter the audit work is behind programme as a result of resource issues
mainly relating to the number of staff vacancies in the teams (full details are
provided in section 8 below) and audit work carried over from the previous
financial year. Recovery plans and reprioritisation of work is underway to assess
the full impacts on the audit programme so a risk-based approach can be taken in
relation to allocation of resources.
3.3 Work has also begun on a number of initiatives to improve the effectiveness of
the Directorate. These include staff engagement sessions to seek feedback on
how the Directorate is working which were very beneficial and are being acted on
by each head of team. Other initiatives include forming a collaboration working
group to further improve how the teams in Risk and Assurance can work even

Page 29

more effectively together. We are also looking at reporting, audit planning and
interaction with key stakeholders.
3.4 Another key workstream underway is ensuring that themes and issues identified
in the work of all the teams can be pulled together to better inform how we plan
our work and inform the controls and mitigations on Enterprise and Level 1 Risks.
3.5 Good progress has also been made with the Safety, Health and Environment
Directorate on strengthening the integration of second line assurance work
between our two Directorates and a joint paper was recently submitted to the
Safety, Sustainability and Human Resources Panel to explain how that work will
be taken forward. Further progress updates will be provided to the Panel.
3.6 Following the identified trend in increases in Poorly Controlled (PC) and Requires
Improvement (RI) outcomes over the past three years, the teams undertook an
exercise to identify underlying reasons for this. Findings are as follows:
(a)

Internal Audit

There is a clear year on year increase in the number of audit reports issued with
either a RI or PC rating. Excluding memos, this rises in each year as follows:
2018/19 41 per cent, 2019/20 63 per cent and 2020/21 83 per cent. Reviewing
the rates in different business areas indicated that in those three years, Crossrail
had a higher proportion of reports being issued with a RI rating in comparison to
the previous year (2018/19 zero per cent, 2019/20 14 per cent and 2020/21 21
per cent). Other areas either fluctuate or are steady and fluctuations were either
due to our risk-based approach or the inconsistent number of reviews completed
in each area.
Assessment was then carried out against the Enterprise Risk (ER) these reports
were issued in over the three years. This again showed ER14 (Opening of the
Elizabeth Line) as progressively getting more RI over the three years.
(b)

Integrated Assurance

The analysis indicated that there is no real trend evident in RI and PC reports
issued in the past three years, either by area or Enterprise Risk level.
Percentages are fairly consistent and do not fluctuate greatly.
3.7 This analysis will be carried out on a regular basis, with findings reported as part
of the Risk and Assurance quarterly reports and Annual Report.
3.8 Work has also begun on ensuring that trends across all teams in Risk and
Assurance can be identified. Work is currently at different levels of maturity in
each team but the aim is get each team to the same level and ensure this can
then feed into work planning across the Directorate.
3.9 The planned integration of the Crossrail Project Programme Assurance team into
TfL Risk and Assurance to cover all Elizabeth line functions rather than just
Crossrail is covered elsewhere on the agenda.

Page 30

4

Enterprise Risk Management

4.1 The following Level 0 Enterprise Risks reviews were facilitated by the team in the
last quarter and the outcomes will now go forward to the relevant Panels and
Committees as per the agreed schedule:
(a)

Protecting the wellbeing of our employees (ER2);

(b)

Cyber and protective security (ER4);

(c)

Inability to support new ways of working (ER10); and

(d)

Disparity leading to unequal or unfair outcomes (ER11).

4.2 It has been agreed that the focus of ER2 (Protecting the wellbeing of our
employees) will extend to include the attraction and retention of staff to reflect the
current challenges we face as an organisation.
4.3 The top five Strategic Level 1 risks for Elizabeth line have been agreed in
principle. Workshops are underway to develop these further in terms of full risk
assessments and mitigation strategies. Development of these risks is planned to
be complete by December 2021 at the latest.
4.4 Integration of the Enterprise Risk Management and IT Information Security Risk
Management processes are under way in line with ISO 27005 compliance.
4.5 Work undertaken on risk interconnectivity has been beneficial to the risk
management process in several ways:
(a) The interconnectivity between Level 0 (Enterprise) and Level 1 (Strategic) risks
have enabled us to complete a gap analysis on security and asset management
risks across the organisation and has helped to shape our risk approach in these
areas.
(b) The materialisation of highly interconnected risks may impact on several areas
across the business. This type of modelling can aid risk scenario planning to
strengthen systemic/strategic controls.
(c) The visual representation of risks including the overall control rating, impact,
likelihood and levels of interconnectivity across the organisation is an effective
risk communication tool for risk workshops, risk prioritisation, risk reporting and
assurance planning.
4.6 A list of the Level 0 and Level 1 risks is included in Appendix 1.

5

Audit and Assurance

5.1 In TfL, assurance is delivered in accordance with the ‘three lines of defence’
model:
(a)

First line of defence – control and monitoring arrangements carried out by
the functions responsible for managing the risks/controls;

Page 31

(b)

Second line of defence – typically audit and inspection regimes carried out
by teams separate from those responsible for managing the risks/controls,
but reporting through the TfL management hierarchy; and

(c)

Third line of defence – fully independent audit and review activities,
typically with a strategic focus, and reporting to Executive Committee, Audit
and Assurance Committee and other Board Committees and Panels.

5.2 Within the Risk and Assurance Directorate, the Internal Audit function provides
third line assurance, whilst the Integrated Assurance and Project Assurance teams
provide second line assurance. Further information regarding the work of these
teams during Q1 is set out below.
5.3 The table below maps the outcomes of audit and project assurance reviews
carried out by the teams in Risk and Assurance up to the end of Q1 against the
TfL Enterprise Risks. (If a risk is not listed, this means that no work has been
completed against it during the year so far).

Audit rat ing/PA review out come
Poorly controlled
Requires improvement/critical recommendations
Adequately controlled/recommendations
Well controlled
Memo or consultancy

Internal Audit
5.4 The Internal Audit plan forms part of the integrated assurance plan that the
Committee approved on 17 March 2021.
5.5 A full list of audit reports issued during Q1 is included as Appendix 2. Audits in
progress at the end of Q1 is included as Appendix 3, work planned to start in Q2 is
included as Appendix 4, and details of changes to the audit plan is included as
Appendix 5.
5.6 The Internal Audit Q1 summary, included as Appendix 6, includes highlights from
work completed during the quarter. It also provides an overview of the delivery of
the audit plan, a summary of the reports issued and conclusions and information
on overdue audit actions.
5.7 At the last Committee we reported on the review being undertaken of the
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) White Paper and
its possible impact on TfL. This has now been completed and there are a number

Page 32

of areas that would impact TfL should this become legislation. A TfL wide
response was prepared and submitted to BEIS.
Mayoral Directions
5.8 Mayoral Directions fall into three broad categories: those addressing technical
issues relating to statutory powers; those related to commercial development
activities; and those related to projects and programmes.
5.9 On 30 November 2020, the Mayor directed TfL to provide direct financial
assistance of up to £500,000 to the traders from Seven Sisters Market (MD2724).
The financial support was intended to see the traders through the transition period
since the closure of the TfL owned building that housed the market and the
provision of a temporary market at Apex Gardens in 2021 (reported to the Board
on 9 December 2020, the Finance Committee on 10 March 2021 and this
Committee on 17 March 2021).
5.10 On 5 August 2021, Grainger withdrew from the Seven Sisters regeneration
project, including the installation of a temporary market at Apex Gardens.
Although TfL is progressing plans for a separate temporary market, traders face a
further period where they are unable to trade. On 31 August 2021, the Mayor
directed TfL to provide further financial support across all traders up to £500,000
(MD2868). This Mayoral Direction will also be reported to the Finance Committee
on 6 October 2021 and to the Board on 20 October 2021.
Management Actions
5.11 The team monitors the completion of all Internal Audit management actions and
confirms whether management has adequately addressed them. We report by
Directorate on the percentage of actions closed on time over the past six periods.
Appendix 6 provides additional information relating to action management trends
over the last six periods.
5.12 This Appendix also includes information on overdue actions at the end of Q1.
There were no actions arising from Internal Audits more than 60 days overdue at
that date.
Integrated Assurance
5.13 The Integrated Assurance team carries out second line of defence audits,
primarily in relation to health and safety and engineering compliance, and
compliance with Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS). Audit
reports issued by the team follow a similar system of audit conclusions and
priority ratings for issues as the Internal Audit team.
5.14 A summary of work carried out by Integrated Assurance in Q1 is included as
Appendix 7.
5.15 In Q1, three audits were identified (two PC and one RI) that contained examples
of non-compliance with the project management system and CDM (Construction
Design and Management Regulations) requirements that had not been identified
and corrected by first line controls. Consequently, Risk and Assurance met with
the relevant members of Programme Management Office and a review has begun

Page 33

of how the applicable controls are assured and the alignment and interaction of
the different Directorates involved. The work involves mapping the applicable
management systems and ensuring that the roles and responsibilities are clear in
terms of who owns the systems and how they are assured from a holistic, rather
than system specific perspective. Where gaps or overlaps are identified these will
be addressed with the relevant teams.
5.16 All overdue actions have been raised with the action owners and the relevant line
managers. To address the trend noted in the past year, Integrated Assurance
(along with other Risk and Assurance teams) have improved the reporting to TfL
leadership teams. This will ensure the senior teams are aware of audit findings
and overdue audit actions at periodic and quarterly intervals which should help
reduce the number of overdue actions.
Project Assurance
5.17 The Project Assurance team carries out assurance reviews of projects and
programmes across TfL’s Investment Programme, with individual projects selected
for review following a risk-based assessment. Generally, projects with an
Estimated Final Cost over £50m are also subject to (third line) input from the
Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group (IIPAG). However, IIPAG’s
agreed work-bank is determined by the project’s risk profile, which includes some
projects less than £50m, and not all sub-programmes are reviewed. The IIPAG
Quarterly Report is included elsewhere on the agenda. Reports from Project
Assurance reviews are considered alongside the Authority request at the subprogramme board or operating business board depending on the size of the
project.
5.18 Project Assurance also conducts reviews of the sub-programmes to inform annual
requests for Authority at the Programmes and Investment Committee.
5.19 Project Assurance reviews do not carry an overall conclusion in the same way as
audit reports, however, issues raised may be designated as critical issues. The
Project Assurance team follows up on all recommendations to ensure they have
been addressed and reports on those that are overdue to the Programmes and
Investment Committee.
5.20 A summary of the work completed by Project Assurance in Q1 is included as
Appendix 8. This Appendix also includes information on the themes that have
been identified during the quarter and these are being discussed with senior
officers to resolve.
Customer Feedback
5.21 There were 11 customer feedback forms (CFFs) returned in Q1. Internal Audit
issued 11 questionnaires of which four were returned (36 per cent). Integrated
Assurance issued 16 questionnaires of which seven were returned (44 per cent).
A summary of customer feedback forms is included as Appendix 9.
5.22 We have noticed that the response rate to CFFs has gone down since Q1
2018/19 (72 per cent) and Q1 2019/20 (63 per cent). Reminders are sent to
recipients of CFFs two weeks after receiving no response. We are therefore
looking at further changes to how CFFs are sent and followed up, with the aim of

Page 34

increasing the response rate. Whilst the response rate has reduced it is good to
report that the scores received remain high at around 90 per cent.

6

Counter-Fraud and Corruption

6.1 The Counter-fraud and Corruption (CFC) team carries out investigations in all
cases of suspected and alleged fraud. They also carry out a proactive programme
of fraud awareness, prevention and detection activities designed to minimise TfL’s
exposure to fraud risk.
6.2 The tenth meeting of the Counter-fraud and Corruption Steering Group was held
remotely in Q1. The group discussed a range of subjects including the new ‘TfL
Security Policy’, its associated communications plan and the new TfL ‘Security’
SharePoint site, which goes live in Q2. Members were provided with an update on
the work of the new Chief Information Security Officer is undertaking, which was
found to be very informative. The Head of CFC also provided an update to
members on the fraud risk reviews taking place with Technology and Data and
ongoing significant investigations and CFC team projects.
6.3 A summary of the team’s activities during Q1, including information on significant
closed fraud investigations, is included as Appendix 10.
6.4 Details of significant new and ongoing fraud investigations during Q1 is included in
the paper on Part 2 of the agenda.

7

Resources

7.1 At the beginning of Q1 the Directorate was carrying eight vacancies: Head of
Project Assurance, two in Internal Audit, two in Integrated Assurance and three
support roles including a data analyst role. There were two leavers: a Senior Risk
Manager resigned and an Integrated Assurance Auditor retired.
7.2 There has been a lot of recruitment activity in the quarter with a number of offers
being made which will lead to a number of the vacant roles being filled in the next
two quarters.

8

Control Environment Trend Indicators

8.1 The Q1 indicators are included as Appendix 11.
List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1: Level 0 and Level 1 Risks
Appendix 2: Internal Audit reports issued in Q1 2021/22
Appendix 3: Work in Progress at the end of Q1 2021/22
Appendix 4: Work planned for Q2 2021/22
Appendix 5: Cancelled/ deferred/new audits from 2021/22 audit plan
Appendix 6: Internal Audit Q1 summary
Appendix 7: Integrated Assurance Q1 summary
Appendix 8: Project Assurance Q1 summary
Appendix 9: Customer Feedback Q1 summary
Appendix 10: Counter-Fraud and Corruption Q1 summary
Appendix 11: Control Environment Trend Indicators

Page 35

A paper containing exempt supplemental information is included on Part 2 of the agenda.
List of Background Papers:
None
Contact Officer:
Email:

Lorraine Humphrey, Director of Risk and Assurance (Interim)
lorraine.humphrey@tube.tfl.gov.uk

Page 36

Level 0 and Level 1 Risks

Appendix 1

Level 0 TfL Enterprise Risks
Risk
No.

Risk

Owner

Owner
Manager(s)
Head of Insights &
Direction; Head of
Corporate Environment;
Head of Occupational
Health & Wellbeing; Head
of Transport Strategy &
Planning
Head of Strategic Planning
and Governance; Head of
Occupational Health &
Wellbeing
Director of Network
Management; Director of
Bus Operations; Director of
Rail and Sponsored
Services;
Director of LU Asset
Performance & Capital
Delivery; Chief Operating
Officer; Director of People
and Cultural Change
CTO & Director of
Strategy; Director
Compliance Policing & OnStreet; Managing Director LUL

ER1

Major safety, health or
environmental incident or
crisis

Chief Safety, Health
& Environment
Officer

ER2

Protecting the wellbeing of
our employees

Chief People Officer

ER3

Major service disruption

Managing Director LUL

ER4

Major security incident

Managing Director ST

ER5

Supply chain disruption

Chief Finance Officer

ER6

Loss of stakeholder trust

MD Customer,
Communications &
Technology

Director of News and
External Relations; Group
Finance Director; Director
of Legal

ER7

Financial sustainability

Chief Finance Officer

Group Finance Director

ER8

Delivery of key projects and
programmes

Director of Major
Projects

ER9

Changes in customer
demand

MD Customer,
Communications &
Technology

ER10

Inability to support new ways
of working

Chief People Officer

Chief Procurement Officer

Director of Project &
Programme Delivery;
Director, Network
Extensions; LU Director of
Asset Performance and
Capital Delivery
CTO & Director of
Strategy; Director of City
Planning; Director of
Innovation; Director of
Public Transport Service
Planning
CTO & Director of
Strategy; Chief People
Officer; Estates
Management Director

Page 37

Mayor’s Transport
Strategy / Corporate
Manager
Strategy

MTS: Healthy streets
and healthy people

CS: People and
stakeholders

MTS: A good public
transport experience

MTS: Healthy streets
and healthy people
MTS: A good public
transport experience
CS: People and
stakeholders

CS: Finance

MTS: A good public
transport experience

CS: Finance

MTS: A good public
transport experience

Mayors Transpo

Level 0 and Level 1 Risks
Level 0 TfL Enterprise Risks
Risk
No.

Risk

Owner

Manager(s)

Mayor’s Transport
Strategy / Corporate
Strategy

CS: People and
stakeholders

ER11

Disparity leading to unequal or
unfair outcomes

Director of
Diversity,
Inclusion &Talent

Chief Safety, Health &
Environment Officer; CTO &
Director of Strategy; Director
of City Planning;
MD Customer,
Communications &
Technology; Strategic
Planning Manager

ER12

Asset condition unable to
support TfL outcomes

Managing
Director - LUL

Director of TfL Engineering
Delivery

MTS: A good public
transport experience

ER13

Governance and controls
suitability

General Counsel

Director of Legal

MTS: All MTS themes

ER14

Opening of the Elizabeth Line

Managing
Director - LUL

Chief Operating Officer;
Operations Business
Manager

MTS: A good public
transport experience

Manager(s)

Mayor’s Transport
Strategy / Corporate
Strategy

LU Chief of Staff

CS: People

LU Chief of Staff
Director of Customer
Operations, Director of LU
Asset Performance and
Capital Delivery
Senior Divisional Financial
Controller (LU)

CS: People

Level 1 London Underground Strategic Risks
Risk
No.

Risk

LU01

Lack of trust between
colleagues and people leaders

LU02

LU Diversity and Inclusion

Director of
Customer
Operations
TBC

LU03

LU Service issues worsen
customer perceptions

LU Managing
Director

LU04

LU Failure to deliver our
budget

Chief Financial
Officer - Crossrail

LU05

LU Inability to keep assets safe
and operable

Director of TfL
Engineering
Delivery

LU06

LU Major Incident

LU07

LU Inability to Restart and
Recover

LU08

LU Cyber Security Incident

LU09

LU Risk of serious injury, death
or harm (customers or
colleagues)

LU Managing
Director

LU10

LU Inability to establish
strategy and governance

LU Chief of Staff

LU11

LU Major programmes
readiness and integration

Director of
Operational
Readiness

Owner

Director of
Customer
Operations
Director of
Operational
Readiness
TfL Chief
Engineer

MTS: A good public
transport experience

CS: Finance

Director of LU Asset
Performance and Capital
Delivery, Engineering Heads
of Profession, Head of Asset
Investment

MTS: A good public
transport experience

Head of Network Operations

MTS: Healthy Streets and
Healthy People

Head of Network Command

MTS: All themes

Head of Central Engineering

MTS: A good public
transport experience

Head of SHE BP – LU & PS

MTS: Healthy Streets and
Healthy People

Head of LU Business
Strategy; Head of LU
Secretariat
Head of 4LM Implementation
and Operational delivery,
Senior Readiness Manager,
Upgrade Delivery Manager,
Head of Station Integration,

Page 38

MTS: All themes

MTS: A good public
transport experience

Level 0 and Level 1 Risks

Appendix 1
Head of Network Operations

LU12

LU Failure to deliver asset
investment

Director of LU
Asset
Performance and
Capital Delivery

LU13

LU Inability to operate Control
Centres

Director of
Customer
Operations

LU14

Lack of resilience of back up
control centres

Director of
Customer
Operations

MTS: A good public
transport experience

Head of Enhancements
Head of Line Operations
(Circle & Hammersmith and
District lines); Head of
Profession Service Control)
Head of Line Operations
(Circle & Hammersmith and
District lines); Head of
Profession Service Control)

MTS: A good public
transport experience

MTS: A good public
transport experience

Level 1 Surface Transport Strategic Risks
Risk
No.

Risk

Owner

ST03

Inability to deliver the
Investment Programme

Director of Project
& Programme
Delivery

ST04

ST07
ST08
ST10
ST11

Manager(s)

Mayor’s Transport
Strategy / Corporate
Strategy

Head of Projects &
Programmes Delivery
(Assets)

MTS: All MTS outcomes

Unable to maintain and
renew the condition of assets

Director of TfL
Engineering
Delivery

Disruption to quality of
service
Protecting the wellbeing and
inclusion of our people
Disruptive technology
undermines core business
Major safety, health or
environmental incident or
crisis

Director of Network
Management

Head of Asset Investment,
Head of Asset Operations,
Head of Engineering
Surface
Head of Control Centre
Operations

Director of CPOS

Senior HR Business Partner

Director of
Innovation

Senior Policy Manager

Managing Director
- ST

Head of SHE BP – ST

Managing Director
- ST

Head of T&D – Surface

Divisional Finance
Director (ST)

Head of Finance (Rail &
Other Ops)

CS: Finance

Snr Op Security & Crime
Reduction Manager
Head of Buses Business
Development, Senior
Finance Business Partner
(Bus Ops)

MTS: Healthy streets and
healthy people

ST12

Major cyber security incident

ST16

Inability to source new
revenue stream for roads

ST17

Major security incident

Director of CPOS

ST20

Inability to achieve net bus
income target

Director of Bus
Operations

MTS: Healthy streets and
healthy people
MTS: A good public
transport experience
CS: People
All MTS themes: All MTS
outcomes
MTS: Healthy streets and
healthy people
MTS: A good public
transport experience

MTS: A good public
transport experience

Level 1 Professional Services Strategic Risks
Risk
No.

Risk

Owner

Manager(s)

Customers, Communications and Technology
Director of City
Head of Transport
Planning
Strategy and
Planning

Mayor’s Transport Strategy
/ Corporate Strategy

CP03

Insufficient progress in
meeting the MTS

TD35

T&D cyber security incident

Director of Strategy
& Chief Technology
Officer

Chief Information
Security Officer

MTS: A good public transport
experience

TD31

TfL is not ready for the
switchover from PSTN

Director of Strategy
& Chief Technology

Head of
Transformation

CS: Finance

Page 39

All MTS themes: All MTS
outcomes

Level 0 and Level 1 Risks

Appendix 1

Level 1 Professional Services Strategic Risks
Risk
No.

Risk

Owner

Manager(s)

GP03

Continuity of Supply

GP04

Single Source Supply

GP05

Major Infrastructure Works
Suppliers

EN01

Engineering not understood
or consulted

Portfolio – Networks
Finance
Chief Procurement
Head of Procurement
Officer
- Strategy & Perform
Chief Procurement
Head of Procurement
Officer
- Strategy & Perform
Chief Procurement
Head of Procurement
Officer
- Strategy & Perform
Engineering
Director of TfL
COO Engineering
Engineering

EN02

TfL is not compliant with its
ROGS regulations

Director of TfL
Engineering

EN03

Engineering is unable to
deliver its provision

GC01

Significant Legal NonCompliance
Insufficient legal resource to
meet demand from the
business
Significant non-compliance
with GDPR and other privacy
legislation

Director of TfL
COO Engineering
Engineering
General Counsel
Director of Legal
Director of Legal

Mayor’s Transport Strategy
/ Corporate Strategy

Officer

GC02

GC04

HR01
HR02
HR04

Inability to attract the right
resources
Inability to retain the right
resources
Pay becomes neither fair nor
equal

Director of Legal

Head of Technical
Engineering

Director of Legal

Head of
Head of Privacy and
Information
Data Protection
Governance and
DPO
Human Resources
Chief People
Director of Diversity,
Officer
Inclusion &Talent
Chief People
Director of Diversity,
Officer
Inclusion &Talent
Chief People
Director of
Officer
Compensations &
Benefits

Page 40

CS : Finance
CS : Finance
CS : Finance

All MTS themes: All MTS
outcomes
MTS: Healthy streets and
healthy people
MTS: A good public transport
experience
All MTS themes: All MTS
outcomes
All MTS themes: All MTS
outcomes
All MTS themes: All MTS
outcomes

CS: People
CS: People
CS: People

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Internal audit reports issued in Q1 2021/22


Appendix 2

There were 11 reports issued during the quarter

Page 41

Enterprise Risk

Directorate

ER01 Major health,
safety or
environmental
incident or crisis

Surface Transport

ER04 Major security
incident

Customers
Communication &
Technology

Ref

Audit title

Summary of Finding

Conclusion

H

M

L

20 004

Fatigue Risk
Management

Requires
Improvement

0

3

0

20 404

Privileged Access
to Mission and
Business Critical
Systems

There were three medium issues identified as
follows:
1) Projects awarded funding under the Bus Safety
Innovation Challenge or equivalent, were not being
adequately monitored.
2) Invoices received for payment are not being
recorded against project award.
3) There was no overarching plan in place to help
identify all the various projects taking place under
working groups within the bus safety team and
related projects taking place outside bus safety.
Whilst a number of controls are in place,
opportunities for control improvement exists, in
particular:
- TfL has not formally determined and classified
privileged account types and a privileged access
inventory has not been completed.
- Section 3.4.3 of the TfL System Access Control
Standard (S1735 A2) requires that privileged user
access reviews should be completed bi-annually.
However, we found that privileged users’ access
rights are not reviewed on this basis in order to
ensure that all users with elevated access are
appropriate and required.

Requires
Improvement

2

4

1

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Enterprise Risk

Directorate

ER07 Financial
sustainability

Customers
Communication &
Technology

ER07 Financial
sustainability

Ref

Summary of Finding

Conclusion

H

M

L

21 023

ACE-funded
projects: The
Cultural Recovery
Fund Part 1

Memo

0

0

0

Finance

21 034

TfL Scorecard

Memo

0

0

0

ER07 Financial
sustainability

Human Resources

20 108

Well
Controlled

0

0

0

ER07 Financial
sustainability

Surface Transport

20 113

Transitioning to
the new Additional
Voluntary
Contributions
provider
Additional
Dedicated Home to
School and College
Transport Funding

The London Transport Museum (LTM) successfully
applied to the Arts Council England (ACE) for a grant
of £1.75m towards its running costs. Certain
conditions had to be met before payment was made;
one of which was a certified statement of income
and expenditure.
Internal Audit confirmed that the statement, in all
material aspects, accurately reflects the LTM’s
income and expenditure during the financial period
ended 31 March 2021.
- All measures reviewed, for both the H1 and H2
scorecards, exceeded their targets. In all cases we
are satisfied that the outcomes have been accurately
reported.
- Two mitigations were proposed for the 2020/21 TfL
Scorecard results. These have been submitted to the
Chief Finance Officer and Commissioner for review
and approval. In our opinion these mitigations are
reasonable.
- There were no issues identified in the course of this
review.
Key controls to ensure the effective transition to the
new Additional Voluntary Contributions provider
were found to be well designed and operated
effectively. No issues or actions were identified or
raised.
Provision of extra Covid-secure buses and associated
services, e.g. cleaning and communications via
posters, to enable school pupils to be transported to
school when there was reduced capacity due to
social distancing on public service buses.
This review certified £9,230,276.74 of expenditure
was spent in line with the terms and conditions
attached to the grant.

Memo

0

0

0

Page 42

Audit title

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Enterprise Risk

Directorate

ER13 Governance
and controls
suitability

Customers
Communication &
Technology

ER13 Governance
and controls
suitability

Surface Transport

Ref

Page 43

Audit title

Summary of Finding

Conclusion

H

M

L

20 403

Compliance with
GDPR
Requirements –
Concessions
System

Adequately
Controlled

0

3

1

20 006

Bus Service
Delivery Model

Our audit identified the following:
- Inadequate governance over access control matrix
used to grant users access to the InNovator
application has resulted in users having more
permissions than required.
- There is no regular review of the InNovator logs
recording all user activity.
- The requirement for the TfL Contact Centre
Operations Executive team to encrypt personal data
before sending it to data subjects is not included in
its documented procedures.
There were six high priority issues found:
1) The merging of three roles into the Senior Delivery
Manager (SDM) role has meant that the job
combines many complex and disparate facets that
SDMs feel are difficult to manage.
2) The ability of the Senior Service Delivery Manager
to fulfil their role is dependent on the knowledge,
skills and abilities of the SDMs that they manage.
3) There is a lack of management information which
is impeding senior management’s ability to have
strategic oversight and management of their
business operations.
4) Operational staff in Bus Service Delivery have not
been subject to performance reviews and poor
performance is not being effectively managed in line
with established TfL policies and procedures.
5) There is insufficient management information to
assess the work capacity of Network Traffic
Controllers in providing support to the SDM role.
6) Issues affecting the safety of TfL bus stations are
not being escalated by some SDMs to Bus Operators.

Poorly
Controlled

6

4

0

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Directorate

ER13 Governance
and controls
suitability

General Counsel

ER14 Opening of
the Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

Ref

Audit title

Summary of Finding

Conclusion

H

M

L

20 610

TfL Governance
and Decision
Making

Requires
Improvement

0

4

1

20 508

Demobilisation of
Tier 1 contractors

Four medium and one low issue were raised. The
medium issues are as follows:
1) Some Terms of Reference (ToR) had not been
changed to reflect the new guidance on names of
meetings, there is no standard template and levels of
detail vary.
2) Decisions do not include the decision maker's
name in the minutes or are not supported by a
separate decision note which sets out the decision.
3) TfL is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty,
which requires it to have due regard to the impacts
of its decisions on people with protected
characteristics. The guidance does not provide
granular detail on how and when an Equality Impact
Assessment is to be evidenced.
4) The Processes & Systems Group ToR require
decisions up to the value of £0.5m to be on 'Group'
consensus basis rather those with delegated
authority.
There were no issues identified as part of this audit.
However, some were noted that will be reported as
part of audit 20 504 on the Alternative Delivery
Model. This audit (20 508) was also split into two
parts, the second part of which will be undertaken as
part of the 2021/22 plan.

Well
Controlled

0

0

0

Page 44

Enterprise Risk

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Enterprise Risk

Directorate

ER14 Opening of
the Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

Ref
20 505

Page 45

Audit title

Summary of Finding

Conclusion

H

M

L

Management of
Staff costs

Four medium and one low issue were raised. The
medium issues are as follows:
1) Formal guidance to staff covering Workforce
Planning does not reflect current practice, or in the
case of contract extensions needs to be put in place.
Formal guidance to staff covering Workforce
Planning does not reflect current practice, or in the
case of contract extensions needs to be put in place.
2) Arrangements for verifying and approving
timesheet or timecard entry vary across the
contractor base. Adherence to process can be
patchy, and in some areas not sufficient to provide
assurance that time is monitored consistently
through to invoice.
3) Annual Conflict of Interest exercises are focused
on the Senior Leadership Team and do not provide
sufficient coverage of the business. Frequency needs
to increase, and the timeframe within which
escalations considered improved.
4) Staff change is not yet consolidated as a
Directorate level input to Workforce Planning.
Previously proposals were grouped together and
templated through the Internal Resourcing Group.

Requires
Improvement

0

4

1

[page left intentionally blank]

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Work in progress at the end of Q1 2021/22


Appendix 3

There were 17 audits in progress at the end of the quarter

Enterprise risk

Directorate

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Ref

Page 47

Audit title

Objective

20 502

Management of works
deferred to LU

To provide assurance that current identified
residual scope is managed effectively

Crossrail

20 504

Alternative Delivery
Model Strategy

To provide assurance that the alternative delivery
model strategy is adequate

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

20 507

CRL HSE framework

To provide assurance over the adequacy and
effectiveness of the HSE framework

In progress

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

20 511

To provide assurance that PSCs and FDCs are being
managed and monitored by Crossrail in an effective
manner

In progress

ER04 Major security
incident

Customers
Communication &
Technology

20 402

Monitoring
Professional Service
and Framework
Development
Consultants (FDCs).
Enterprise IT Security
Layer

To provide assurance on the governance,
accountability, adequacy and effectiveness of TfL's
enterprise IT security layers

In progress

ER07 Financial
sustainability

Customers
Communication &
Technology

21 024

ACE-funded projects:
The Cultural Recovery
Fund Part 2

Certify costs in respect of funding for The Cultural
Recovery Fund (Part 2)

In progress

ER07 Financial
sustainability

Customers
Communication &
Technology

Thales' Annual
Financial Report for
the Connect Contract

To provide assurance on Thales’ compliance to
specific clauses within the Connect Contract

ER10 Inability to
support new ways of
working

Customers
Communication &
Technology

20 405

Digital accessibility TfL

To provide assurance that the main TfL website is in
line with WCAG 2.1 principles and requirements

In progress

ER01 Major health,
safety or
environmental
incident or crisis

Finance

21 003

Construction Design
and Management
(CDM) Regulations

To provide assurance that the arrangements
regarding Commercial Development acting as the
Client under the CDM Regulations are adequate
and effective

In progress

21 056

Current Status
In progress
Reporting

Reporting

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Enterprise risk

Directorate

ER07 Financial
sustainability

Finance

ER07 Financial
sustainability

Ref

Page 48

Audit title

Objective

Current Status

20 612

Management of the
Procurement and
Supply Chain
Improvement
Programme (Phase I)

To provide assurance that the management of the
Procurement and Supply Chain Improvement
Programme (Phase 1) is being delivered effectively
and efficiently

Finance

20 611

Tenant Billing

To provide assurance over the adequacy and
effectiveness of the tenant billing and rent
collection processes including lessons learned

In progress

ER07 Financial
sustainability

Finance

21 025

Bank reconciliations

To provide assurance on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the bank reconciliations process

In progress

ER07 Financial
sustainability

Finance

21 060

Management of
Defined Costs -Track
Programme Contract

To provide assurance that the controls around the
management of defined costs are effective

In progress

ER13 Governance
and controls
suitability

General Counsel

21 055

BEIS white paper

To assess the proposals and recommendations
made in the Government’s White Paper ‘Restoring
trust in audit and corporate governance’ (March
2021), considering their impact on TfL

Reporting

ER02 Protecting the
wellbeing of our
employees

Human Resources

21 008

Headcount Controls
Process

To provide assurance on the adequacy and
effectiveness of controls within the headcount
controls process

ER03 Major service
disruption

London
Underground

21 011

Engineering Resource
Model

ER03 Major service
disruption

Pan TfL

21 010

Climate Adaptation

To provide assurance over the processes and
controls of the Engineering Resource model
between Delivery Account Lead and Engineering
Lead
To provide assurance that controls over TfL core
systems resilience to climate change are adequate

Reporting

In progress

Reporting

In progress

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Changes to the 2021/22 audit plan
 There were 11 changes to the plan since the last Committee: 8 new, 2 cancellations and 1 deferral
Ref

Audit Title

Status

Appendix 5

Audit Comments

21 055

BEIS white paper

New

21 056

Thales' Annual Financial Report for the
Connect Contract
Effectiveness of the due diligence process
for new tenants

New

21 058

Governance of Single Sourcing Requests

New

To provide assurance that the governance process in place to manage the use of single sourcing
(or non-competitive) procurements is robust and effective and in line with recommendations
from previous audit findings on Single Source Requests. (Management Request)

21 059

New

21 062

Governance of Contract Variation
Recommendations
Management of Defined Costs -Track
Programme Contract
Demobilisation of Tier 1 Contractors -phase
2
Disposal of Temporary Assets

20 503

Readiness for Trial Running

Cancelled

To provide assurance that the governance process in place to manage the use of contract
variations is robust and effective. (Management Request)
To provide assurance that the controls around the management of defined costs are effective.
(Management Request)
To provide assurance that the controls around Tier 1 contractor demobilisation are adequate and
effective.
To provide assurance that the controls around the disposal of temporary assets are adequate and
effective.
As the name and scope will change and it will take place in the 2021/22 financial year, it was
decided the most practical thing would be to cancel this audit and carry out any work required
under a new title and number. This will be done in consultation with other assurance providers to
ensure no gaps or duplication. At present there is no audit in the 2021/22 plan to cover this topic

21 018

Cubic entity - review of procurement

Cancelled

20 406

IT Disaster Recovery and Operational
Resilience

Deferred

21 057

Page 49

21 060
21 061

New

New
New
New

The objective of this review was to assess the proposals and recommendations made in the
Government’s White Paper ‘Restoring trust in audit and corporate governance’ (March 2021),
considering their impact on TfL. (Management Request)
To provide assurance on Thales’ compliance to specific clauses within the Connect Contract.
(Management Request)
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of Commercial Development's due
diligence process for new retail tenants including financial vetting. (Management Request)

Audit cancelled to avoid duplication of efforts as Project Assurance and IIPAG are launching a
similar review from June 2021.
It was agreed with the business that this audit would be deferred to the 2021/22 plan. The audit
(21 019) which was included in this year’s plan is currently scheduled for Q4 start.

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee

Page 50

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Work planned to start in Q2 2021/22
 There are 22 audits planned to start during the quarter
Enterprise risk

Directorate

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Page 51

Audit title

Objective

21 049

Employer’s Completion Process

To provide assurance that the controls around the Employer’s
Completion Process are effective

Crossrail

21 051

Information Management and
Transfer

To review the effectiveness of controls around information
management and transfer from Crossrail to TfL

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

21 061

Demobilisation of Tier 1
Contractors -phase 2

To provide assurance that the controls around Tier 1 contractor
demobilisation are adequate and effective

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

21 062

Disposal of Temporary Assets

To provide assurance that the controls around the disposal of
temporary assets are adequate and effective

ER04 Major security
incident

Customers
Communication &
Technology
Customers
Communication &
Technology
Customers
Communication &
Technology
Customers
Communication &
Technology
Customers
Communication &
Technology
Customers
Communication &
Technology

21 012

Cubic entity - review of
systems

Assess the adequacy and effectiveness of access controls, availability
and performance of systems

21 022

Payments to contractors

To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of payments to
contractors on capital and maintenance contracts

21 026

Clean Mobile Energy (7th
review)

Certify costs in respect of EU funding

21 032

Fixed Assets

To determine the effectiveness of the processes and controls for
accounting for TfL’s fixed assets

21 033

Record to Account

To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Record
to Account process

21 020

Software Development of the
Contactless Payments System

Assess the adequacy and effectiveness of controls governing the System
Development Life Cycle for the development and implementation of
changes to the Contactless Payment System

Customers
Communication &
Technology

21 040

Transformation

To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of
Transformation processes

ER05 Supply chain
disruption
ER07 Financial sustainability

ER07 Financial sustainability

ER07 Financial sustainability

ER10 Inability to support
new ways of working

ER10 Inability to support
new ways of working

Ref

Appendix 4

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Enterprise risk

Directorate

ER07 Financial sustainability

Finance

ER07 Financial sustainability

Ref

Page 52

Audit title

Objective

21 027

Commercial Development
Financial Sustainability Plan

To provide assurance that the controls over the Financial Sustainability
Plan in Commercial Development are adequate and effective

Finance

21 028

ER07 Financial sustainability

Finance

21 057

Commercial Development's
asset management strategy to
maximise secondary revenue
income
Effectiveness of the due
diligence process for new
tenants

To provide assurance over the adequacy and effectiveness of
Commercial Development’s asset management strategy for maximising
secondary revenue income and the extent to which these are being
delivered in line with the business plan
Provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of Commercial
Development's due diligence process for new retail tenants including
financial vetting

ER07 Financial sustainability

Finance

21 058

Governance of Single Sourcing
Requests

To provide assurance that the governance process in place to manage
the use of single sourcing (or non-competitive) procurements is robust
and effective and in line with recommendations from previous audit
findings on Single Source Requests

ER07 Financial sustainability

Finance

21 059

Governance of Contract
Variation Recommendations

To provide assurance that the governance process in place to manage
the use of contract variations is robust and effective

ER10 Inability to support
new ways of working

Finance

21 038

SAP Business Planning
Consolidation Tool (BPC)

Assess the adequacy of the development and implementation of the
current enhancement to BPC

ER13 Governance and
controls suitability
ER02 Protecting the
wellbeing of our employees
ER02 Protecting the
wellbeing of our employees
ER07 Financial sustainability

Finance

21 044

General Counsel

21 042

Procurement & Supply Chain
(P&SC) Improvement Plan (PIP)
Business Ethics

Human Resources

21 007

Human Resources

21 031

Core Line Manager Training
(staff wellbeing)
Pensioner Payroll

To provide assurance the P&SC transformation is being delivered
effectively and efficiently
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of controls
supporting business ethics across TfL
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of on-line
manager training to support wellbeing of staff
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of controls for
Pensioner Payroll

ER13 Governance and
controls suitability

Surface Transport

21 043

Integration of Woolwich Ferry

To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of controls on
the Woolwich Ferry integration

Appendix 6: Internal Audit Q1 Summary
Audit plan 2021/22 in Q1
2

1

8

There were 19 audits carried over from the 2020/21 plan, eight of which were still in progress at the end of Q1. We
are behind on the 2021/22 plan. This is due to a large number of audits carried over from the previous year and
the effect of current vacancies in the team and continued difficulties in recruitment in TIS auditors. One of the
general auditors also secured a secondment position in a different team and was not replaced.

78

54

14
19

11

Brought 2021plan Cancelled Deferred
forward

New

complete

2021Total

A number of new audits were added in Q1 thereby increasing the overall size of the plan. We also reprogrammed
some audits originally scheduled for Q1 for later in the year after discussions with the business. We will be
reprioritising the plan and reviewing our use of the co-source to recover our position.
There was one poorly controlled and four requires improvement audit reports issued in the quarter. The poorly
controlled report was for an audit from the 2020/21 plan. This was for Bus Service Delivery Model and had six high
and four medium priority issues. Actions have been agreed with management to address all the issues and are
being followed up.

Reports

Page 53

11
Crossrail
CCT
Finance
Gen.Counsel
HR
LU
Surface
Total
PC
RI
AC
WC
M/C

Action Management
Issued In Q1

PC
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
2.5%

Poorly Controlled
Requires Improvement
Adequately Controlled
Well Controlled
Memo/Consultancy

40

RI
2
6
4
2
2
0
3
47.5%

Overall TfL Performance

Issued In the Last 4
Quarters
AC
1
1
0
0
0
0
0
5.0%

WC
1
0
0
0
1
1
1
10.0%

Measure No.

M/C
2
3
2
1
1
1
4
35.0%

%

Closed on time 39

36%

Extended 55

50%

6-period trend

13

Overdue

247

Open

By Directorate
Closed on time

Overdue
CCT 2
Crossrail
Finance
Gen. Counsel 1
HR 1
LU
Major Projects
Surface
SHE
Pan TfL

30%
26%
40%
33%
33%
100%
8

1

41%
100%

Based on actions
due in the last six
periods
0-30 days
31-59 days
60-99 days
100+ days

[page left intentionally blank]

Appendix 7: Integrated Assurance Audit Q1 Summary
Audit plan 2021/22 in Q1

Key Highlights
The eight audits carried over from 2020/21 were all
completed in Q1. We are currently significantly
behind on the 2021/22 programme. This is a
combination of a retirement, a return from long term
sickness and two auditor vacancies which are planned to
be filled in Q3.

118

110

10
12

8

Brought
forward

2021plan Cancelled Deferred

New

complete

2021Total

Audit rating s by Direc torate - las t 4 Quarters

Page 55

CCT
Finance
LU
MPD
Pan TfL
Surface
Total

PC
0
0
2
0
0
2
6.1%

RI
0
0
5
0
0
5
15.2%

AC
7
2
6
0
1
5
31.8%

M/C
3
2
16
0
1
1
34.8%

Audit Rating By Enterprise Risk – last 4 Quarters
ER01 Major health, safety or environmental… 1 5
ER04 Major security incident

3 3

17

15

5

ER06 Loss of stakeholder trust 1
ER12 Asset condition unable to support TfL… 3 4 3
ER13 Governance and controls suitability 1

5

PC
RI
AC
WC
M/C

Poorly Controlled
Requires Improvement
Adequately Controlled
Well Controlled
Memo/Consultancy

Three audits: 20 721 PPD Client Duties CDM Compliance,
20 724 Handover of tram fleet asset information (both
‘poorly controlled’) and 20 760 Network Management
Client Duties CDM Compliance (‘requires Improvement’)
have prompted a review of project assurance activities.
See the main body of the report.

There are a large number of NIS and PCI compliance
audits scheduled for Q3 and Q4. These audits are
substantially shorter than other audits but make up 30 We have improved the reporting of audit plan progress
per cent of the annual plan. Therefore, whilst progress and action tracking to TfL Senior Management to provide
will not be consistent throughout the year, it is expected greater awareness and oversight of overdue actions.

Action Management

Overall TfL Performance
WC
0
0
6
1
0
1
12.1%

that 85 per cent of the plan will be completed as per
target.

Measure No.

%

Closed on time

16

25%

Extended

11

17%

6-period trend

16

Overdue

110

Open

By Directorate
Overdue
CCT
Crossrail
Finance 1 2
Gen. Counsel 1
HR
LU 2 1 1
Major Projects 2
5
Surface 1
SHE
Pan TfL

Closed on time

0%

35%
13%

Based on actions
due in the last
six periods
0-30 days
31-59 days
60-99 days
100+ days

[page left intentionally blank]

Appendix 8: Project Assurance Quarterly report

Q1 (P1-3), 2021/22

Reviews undertaken in Quarter 1 highlight the continuation of issues reported in the previous quarter, these being; availability of staff, in
particular commercial and engineering resources; and the need to ensure that business cases are of a high quality and clearly demonstrate an
assessment of value for money.
Sub-Programme Reviews

Public Transport

Recommendation Commentary
(Critical Issues)
Asset strategy development is ongoing and progressing well, however information is not structured in an
9 (0)

Page 57

LU Enhancements

6 (0)

Healthy Streets

5 (0)

Piccadilly Line
Upgrade

4 (0)

optimal format and project prioritisation is not aligned to asset strategies. Delivery plan for 2021/22 in
place but significant spend increase over previous year may be hampered by resource shortages. Not
evident that all projects are demonstrating value for money. Periodic reporting is mostly retrospective and
it is not clear that there is reporting across all areas of the sub-programme.
The recently approved overarching procurement strategy, whilst having the potential to deliver significant
value, will be challenging to implement. There is no strategic-level business case containing prioritisation
criteria. Progress has been made on the prioritisation process for future step-free access projects, but it is
not clear how value for money is being considered. The programme is facing resource pressures especially
in commercial, engineering and risk management.
Good progress has been made in developing the strategy and more robust prioritisation criteria, notably
the impact on bus services. However, value for money considerations should be given more weight in
assessing existing and new schemes. The forecast spending rate for this year is challenging and successful
delivery is at risk due to the limitations on making commitments beyond December 2021, and the
resource shortages in sponsorship, engineering and commercial.
Good progress since last review; trains contract with Siemens on target to commence build of trains 1 and
2 in August 2021, track decommissioning started at South Harrow Sidings. Current delays due to lack of
resources (primarily engineering and commercial) with milestones revised to reflect delays. A more
detailed understanding of scope and delivery approach, the deferral of some works to Stage 2, together
with efficiency savings targets have enabled a reduction in Estimated Final Cost, with potential for further
reduction.

Overdue Recommendations
At the end of Q1 there were 44 open recommendations across 11 sub-programmes. Of these, 19 recommendations were overdue against their
original completion date, none of which are critical issues.
Project Reviews

In addition to the four sub-programme reviews listed above, TfL Project Assurance completed 10 project reviews in Q1 and the Independent
Investment Programme Advisory Group (IIPAG) participated in four of these reviews. From the reviews undertaken a total of 32
recommendations were made. These consisted of four raised by IIPAG, none of which were critical issues, and 28 raised by Project Assurance of
which three were critical issues relating to demonstrating value for money and ensuring business cases are up to date and capture the
deliverable benefits.

Page 58

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Customer Feedback Form Summary in Q1 2021/22

Appendix 9

Internal Audit has issued 11 questionnaires, four returned (36%), average score of 91.1%
Integrated Assurance has issued 16 questionnaires, seven returned (44%), average score of 90.8%
Internal Audit Customer Feedback

Page 59

1) The assignment timing was agreed with me and there was appropriate consideration of my
other commitments as the work progressed
2) The assignment was completed, and report issued within appropriate timescales
3) Communication prior to the assignment was appropriate, including the dates and objectives
4) Throughout the assignment I was kept informed of the work's progress and emerging findings
5) The Internal Audit team demonstrated a good understanding of the business area under review
and associated risks, or took time to build knowledge and understanding as the work progressed
6) The Internal Audit Team acted in a constructive professional and positive manner
7) A fair summary of assignment findings was presented in the report
8) Assignment recommendations were constructive, practical and cost-effective
9) My concerns were adequately addressed, and the review was beneficial to my area of
responsibility and operations
Total

Average
score

Very
good

Good

Satisfac
tory

Poor

Very
Poor

80.0%

2

1

1

0

0

90.0%
80.0%
100.0%
85.0%

3
2
4
1

1
1
0
3

0
1
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

100.0%
100.0%
90.0%
95.0%

4
4
2
3

0
0
2
1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

91.1%

25

9

2

0

0

Integrated Assurance Customer Feedback

Average
score

Satisfied

Dissatisfied

Not
Applicable

Accuracy of the findings
Communication with us during the audit
Effectiveness of the management actions
Our professional manner
Our receptiveness to your concerns
Our understanding of your area
Scheduling of the audit
Time taken to receive the final report
Total

85.7%
100.0%
83.3%
100.0%
100.0%
85.7%
71.4%
100.0%
90.8%

6
7
5
7
6
6
5
7
49

1
0
1
0
0
1
2
0
5

0
0
1
0
1
0
0
0
2

[page left intentionally blank]

Appendix 10: Counter-Fraud and Corruption Q1 Summary
Fraud investigation
During Q1, six new cases were opened (2020/21 Q1: seven new cases) and six cases were closed. Of the six newly opened cases, four allegations related to suspected fraud
within TfL products and discounts. Four financial investigations were conducted on four subjects and nine bank accounts. No Suspicious Activity Report (SAR) checks were
undertaken during the quarter.
Fraud prevention
 Members of the Counter-fraud and Corruption team conducted a series of targeted fraud awareness and engagement sessions with employees from Contact Centre
Operations and the Social Media team (100+ attendees). The sessions, which were organised after an employee within the same business area became the victim of a
‘phishing’ scam, were designed to raise awareness of fraud, bribery and corruption both at work and at home. Attendees were provided with useful links to the ‘Fraud
Awareness’ Yammer group feed, the recently released Bribery Act e-learning course and TfL’s ‘Code of Conduct’ for employees.

Cases by directorate
Investigations

Cases by type New and Brought Forward

Page 61

B/F

New

Closed

C/F

LU

30

3

3

30

Surface Transport

6

1

1

6

CCT

8

0

0

8

Crossrail

2

1

0

3

Major Projects

1

0

0

1

Commercial Dev.

1

0

0

1

General Counsel

1

0

1

0

Human Resources

1

0

0

1

Finance

2

1

1

2

Total

52

6

6

52

Cases by source New and Brought Forward
Other Enf. Agency
4
Whistleblower 1
Employee (inc NPL) 1
Internal controls
Law Enforcement 1
Member of public
3
0

4
10
14
20

10

20

30

20

18

15
11
10

8
4

5

5

6

1

4
1

0
Supply chain &
Procurement

Theft - cash

Products
(discounts &
refunds)

Pay & Benefits Misuse of data or
information

Other

Significant closed cases
Case 17-721 Selling topographical test answers
In early 2018, the Counter-fraud and Corruption team received information that a number of
private hire applicants, who had failed their first topographical test, had been approached by
a person who knew they had failed and offered to help them cheat the exam in exchange for
money. An investigation identified a TfL employee, working within the Taxi and Private Hire
team, and her brother had committed a serious fraud offence. The TfL employee was
subsequently dismissed. The case was referred to the Metropolitan Police and, following the
execution of a warrant, both were arrested and charged with conspiracy to defraud TfL. A
CPS decision not to charge any of the applicants was taken in the 'public interest’. On 13
May 2021 at Croydon Crown Court, following earlier guilty pleas, Her Honour Judge Charles
sentenced the ex-TfL employee to 18 months imprisonment and her brother to 14 months
imprisonment. Both sentences were suspended for two years. In addition to the terms of
imprisonment handed down, both defendants were also sentenced to complete unpaid
community work, adhere to a three month curfew order between 10pm and 7am and pay
£2,800 of court costs.

[page left intentionally blank]

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee

Appendix 11

Control Environment Indicators
Audit indicators – rolling average
Q1 20/21

Q2 20/21

Q3/20/21

Q4 20/21

Q1 21/22

Poorly Controlled

5.3%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

9.1%

Requires Improvement or
Poorly Controlled

50%

58.6%

59%

50%

45.5%

Q1 20/21

Q2 20/21

Q3/20/21

Q4 20/21

Q1 21/22

99.99%

99.96%

99.99%

99.89%

99.87%

Q1 20/21

Q2 20/21

Q3/20/21

Q4 20/21

Q1 21/22

Number of FOI requests

2687

2551

2315

2205

2286

On time FOI responses

99.4%

99.7%

99.8%

99.9%

99.9%

Q2 21/22

Q3 21/22

Q4 21/22

Trend

Q2 21/22

Q3 21/22

Q4 21/22

Trend

Q2 21/22

Q3 21/22

Q4 21/22

Trend

Technology
Page 63

Internal system availability

Information Governance – rolling total

[page left intentionally blank]

Agenda Item 7
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Elizabeth Line Programme Assurance Quarter 1 Report
2021/22

This paper will be considered in public
1

Summary

1.1

This paper provides an overview of programme assurance activity in relation to
the Elizabeth line during Quarter 1 of 2021/22 (Q1).

1.2

A paper is included on the Part 2 agenda which contains supplementary
information that is exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 in that it contains information relating to
the business affairs of TfL. Any discussion of that exempt information must take
place after the press and public.

2

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the paper and the supplementary
information in Part 2 of the agenda.

3

Background

3.1

The Integrated Assurance Framework (IAF) was established in June 2019, based
on a Three Lines of Defence (3LoD) model. This model is now being updated to
cover all of the elements of the Elizabeth line comprising:
(a) Line 1 – Management functions of Crossrail, TfL Rail for London
Infrastructure Limited (RfLI) and key interfaces;
(b) Line 2 – Elizabeth Line Project Programme Assurance (PPA) team; and
(c) Line 3 - TfL Internal Audit and (as of January 2021) a sub-group of the
Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group (IIPAG-EL).

3.2

This paper reports specifically on Line 2 (PPA), Line 3 (Internal Audit) and Line 3
(IIPAG-EL) assurance progress.

3.3

The teams meet periodically with a panel of advisers and the Project
Representative to ensure that assurance is carried out by the right team, at the
right time and to avoid duplication and minimise overlap of effort.

Page 65

4

Line 2 (PPA) Assurance

4.1

As part of the transition arrangements between TfL and Crossrail, LoD2 is in the
process of transferring to TfL’s Risk and Assurance Directorate. Their work is
being expanded to cover all the Elizabeth line entities. This is also in line with
recommendations from the Independent Project Authority and IIPAG and will
mean that all independent assurance is managed under one function. Further
details of how this will work in practice are set out in Appendix 1.

4.2

Overall, the Elizabeth line is now at a more mature level of readiness and while
there are a number of performance and reliability issues to be addressed, there is
increased confidence that the railway is on track to revenue service, and the
question is now one of precise timing.

4.3

LoD2 assurance continues to be undertaken, principally, on a real-time, continual
assurance basis, through participation in project meetings and related activities,
and providing real-time feedback to the project teams. Formal reporting is through
the LoD2 Periodic Assurance Review (PAR) Reports.

4.4

Since the last meeting of the Committee, LoD2 has issued PAR Reports covering
Periods 1, 2, 3 and 4 2021/22, which have provided input to the periodic
Integrated Assurance Report to the Elizabeth Line Delivery Group and the
Elizabeth Line Committee.

4.5

In relation to the timeline to complete, based upon our Period 4 assessment, it is
the opinion of LoD2 assurance that the schedule for completing Crossrail is under
significant pressure but the publicised opening timeframe of ‘first half of 2022’
currently remains intact.

4.6

Regarding cost to complete, current costs and financial commitments are still
within the approved budget. Costs to complete the works remain under pressure
but cost reduction work is ongoing.

4.7

On completion of the works, the project has continued to make significant
progress over the last quarter, key progress highlights including:
(a) Trial Running in the Central Operating Section has stepped-up from four
trains-per-hour (tph) to eight tph and then 12 tph;
(b) stations progress has seen significant steps forward with the transfer of
responsibility for six stations to their respective Infrastructure Manager; three
stations to Rail for London (Infrastructure) Limited – Paddington, Woolwich
and Custom House; and three stations to London Underground – Tottenham
Court Road, Farringdon and Liverpool Street; and
(c) maintenance productivity and access have increased substantially and are on
an improving trajectory to support projected revenue service requirements.

4.8

The operational performance of the Trial Running railway is still highly variable,
typically seeing delays and interruption of planned services due to reliability and
functional issues. Identification and resolution of such issues is an essential,
anticipated part of the commissioning, integration, and testing process toward
achieving acceptable levels of passenger service.

Page 66

4.9

A key feature, therefore, of Crossrail’s current work to deliver a passenger-ready
level of service reliability is its on the expeditious management of the process of
identifying, diagnosing, attributing and implementing solutions across one or more
contractors. Key indicators of Crossrail’s performance in this respect should
therefore start to include the average fault identification and diagnosis interval
and the overall fault-to-fix cycle time. LoD2 are working with Crossrail to help
develop these measures.

4.10 Planned LoD2 assurance activity is set out as part of the 3LoD Assurance
Forward Look provided in Appendix 2 to this paper.

5

Line 3 (TfL Internal Audit) Assurance

5.1

The Crossrail Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 was approved by the Crossrail Audit
and Assurance Committee on 16 March 2021.

5.2

In Q1 we issued two reports, have four in progress which will be completed in Q2
and have four audits starting in Q2.
Audit Delivery

5.3

Summary information of the two reports issued in Q1 are set out below.

5.4

The Management of Staff Costs audit was found to be ‘Requires Improvement’
and has issues relating to inconsistencies in the approval of contract extensions
and verification of timesheets, staff changes are not consolidated at Directorate
level and Conflicts of Interest declarations did not cover all levels of personnel.
Actions have been agreed with the management team and dates agreed by which
they will be rectified.

5.5

The Demobilisation of Tier 1 contractors audit looked at the strategy of
demobilising Tier 1 contractors early and it was found to be ‘Well Controlled’. As
early demobilisation had not been put into practice, it was not possible to test the
effectiveness of the strategy at that time. In order to do so, a new audit was
added to the 2021/22 plan in Q1 to look at effectiveness, this is one of the audits
that will complete in Q2.

5.6

A full list of audit reports issued during Q1 is included as Appendix 3. Audits in
progress at the end of Q1 is included as Appendix 4, work planned to start in Q2 is
included as Appendix 5, and details of changes to the Audit Plan is included as
Appendix 6.
Management Actions

5.7

There were no actions overdue.
Changes to the Audit Plan

5.8

Line of Defence 3 (LoD3) (TfL Internal Audit) regularly review and update the
Audit Plan throughout the year, in liaison with management, to reflect changing
business priorities. There were three changes to the plan in Q1.

Page 67

5.9

One audit covering Trial Running was cancelled in Q1 as it was felt other lines of
defence such as IIPAG and the PPA team were better placed to do that work and
avoid duplication. Two new audits were added to the plan to cover management
requests and to undertake the second audit on Tier 1 demobilisation.

6

Line 3 (IIPAG-EL) Assurance

6.1

The terms of reference of the IIPAG-EL sub-group require the group to provide a
look ahead of its proposed areas of interest and work. The work plan has been
integrated into the overall Integrated Audit and Assurance Plan, which is
maintained by LoD2 and is reviewed and coordinated regularly within the
Crossrail Programme Assurance Group coordinated by LoD2/ PPA. Progress with
the three main areas of focus is summarised as follows:
(a) Baseline 1.2 (BL1.2) – the sub-group has received regular updates from
LoD2, the Project Representative and other stakeholders with a particular
interest in the transition period between Trial Running and Trial Operations but
at the time of writing, we understand the BL1.2 products are still in
development and are not yet available to review;
(b) supporting the work of the Railway Assurance Board - Crossrail (RAB-C) and
its successor, the Integrated Technical Assurance Panel (ITAP) – the subgroup has engaged with RAB-C and ITAP, gaining an understanding of the
planning arrangements and implications for closing out the remaining
assurance dependencies; and
(c) digital railway – the sub-group has completed its review of this area including
an assessment of cyber security concerns and the report will be issued in Q2.

6.2

Work in these areas does not seek to duplicate other assurance that is happening
elsewhere, but to provide and establish a degree of confidence in these critical
areas for getting the railway into passenger service.

6.3

The overall assessment by LoD3 (IIPAG-EL sub-group) is that the overall
assurance framework has continued to operate effectively over the last quarter.
We note the progress responding to our recommendations in our January 2021
report into effectiveness of programme assurance.

7

Infrastructure and Projects Authority Critical Friend Review

7.1

The Infrastructure and Projects Authority (IPA) is the Government's centre of
expertise for infrastructure and major projects reporting to the Cabinet Office and
HM Treasury. The IPA conducts regular independent reviews of selected major
UK projects.

7.2

In November 2020, the IPA conducted a follow-up critical friend review of
Crossrail and recommended seven actions of which four are complete and the
remaining three are being addressed progressively as part of Crossrail’s delivery
and completion programme.

Page 68

8

Integrated Audit and Assurance Plan

8.1

The 3LoD IAF maintains an integrated plan of assurance activity coordinated
through the Crossrail Programme Assurance Group forum. A summary of
planned assurance activities is summarised in Appendix 2.

List of Appendices:
Appendix 1 – Integrated Assurance Approach to Elizabeth Line Readiness and Crossrail
Transition
Appendix 2 – 3LoD Assurance Forward Look
Appendix 3 – Line 3 (TfL Internal Audit) Reports issued in Q1 2021/22
Appendix 4 – Line 3 (TfL Internal Audit) Work in progress at the end of Q1 2021/22
Appendix 5 – Line 3 (TfL Internal Audit) Work due to start in Q2 2021/22
Appendix 6 – Line 3 (TfL Internal Audit) Changes to the 2021/22 Audit Plan
List of Background Papers:
None

Contact Officer:
Email:

Rachel McLean, Chief Finance Officer, Crossrail
Finance Director, London Underground
rachelmclean@crossrail.tfl.gov.uk

Contact Officer:
Email:

Lorraine Humphrey, Director of Risk and Assurance (Interim), TfL
lorraine.humphrey@tube.tfl.gov.uk

Page 69

[page left intentionally blank]

Appendix 1 – Integrated Approach to Assurance of Crossrail Transition into TfL
1

Introduction

1.1

This paper, prepared jointly by LoD2 and LoD3, responds to the action from the 17
March 2021 Committee meeting summarised below.
09/03/21 Integrated Assurance Plan
Rachel McLean
2021/22
/Mushtaq Ali
Staff to consider how best
assurance work on Enterprise
Risk 14 (The Opening of the
Elizabeth Line) could be
integrated as part of the
transition phase of Crossrail into
TfL.

15 September
2021 meeting.

1.2

This progress update sets out how the assurance organisation is being further
integrated and how the integrated assurance will approach the transition of Crossrail
into TfL.

2.

Integrated Approach to Assurance
Organisational Arrangements

2.1

The transition of Crossrail’s LoD2 / Project and Programme Assurance (PPA) function
has already commenced with reporting to TfL’s Director of Risk and Assurance. The
Crossrail Chief Finance Officer and Executive Team will continue to receive Programme
Assurance support and reporting as previously.

2.2

The role of the transitioned assurance function will expand, seeing both LoD2 and
LoD3 encompass the wider Elizabeth line related organisations and functions beyond
the immediate Crossrail project and interfaces, to include:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

2.3

Transport for London;
Rail for London;
Rolling Stock Operations and Maintenance (Alstom);
London Underground Limited;
Elizabeth Line Train Operating Company (ELTOC) – MTR; and
Network Rail.

The transition of this function will apply the following principles:
(a) Assurance will be delivered by the most appropriate party within the three
lines model;
(b)

The Crossrail Assurance Group (retitled ELPAG) will continue to provide coordination
of assurance, now across the broader Elizabeth line organisation;

(c)

Continue with the “real time” assurance supplemented by targeted reviews; and

(d)

The target for completing the assurance transition is end-September 2021.

Page 71

Proposed Lines of Enquiry
2.4

The approach to assurance of the principal stated risk ‘Enterprise Risk 14 – The
opening of the Elizabeth Line’, as stated in the introduction to this paper, firstly
recognises the pertinent underpinning objectives relating to this risk as (in no
particular order) being:(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)

2.5

2.6

Completion of the required Crossrail project works;
Infrastructure Operations and Maintenance readiness;
Service Operations Readiness;
Rolling Stock Integration;
National Rail Network Integration;
Reliability and performance of the integrated railway system;
Closeout of the Crossrail project; and
Transition of key staff, information, processes and procedures, and commercial,
contractual and regulatory liabilities to TfL (or its pertinent operating companies).

To this end, with regard to items (a) to (g) above, the LoD2 and LoD3 functions will
continue to operate based on the terms of engagement adopted to-date but with
additional engagement in the areas of operations, rolling stock and the Network Rail
interface. With regard to item (h) Transition, as identified in the Committee action,
our proposed approach will pursue the following key lines of enquiry relating to the
key risks as follows:
Transition of Crossrail people:

To provide assurance that the controls around
the transition of the Crossrail team are adequate
and effective.

Transition of Crossrail assets:

To provide assurance that the controls around
the transition of Crossrail assets are adequate
and effective – this will include TfL’s readiness to
accept these assets.

Transition of Crossrail obligations:

To provide assurance that the controls around
the transition of Crossrail obligations are
adequate and effective.

First steps in undertaking the transition of assurance work will be to propose Terms of
Reference with the joint Crossrail – RfLI Transition Planning team and engage in
regular progress review meetings to determine key sources of risk and adequacy of
controls. Below is an extract from the Elizabeth Line Transition Working Group plan
illustrating the main workstreams:

Page 72

3.

Conclusion

3.1

The above described plans and proposals will be incorporated into the updated
Integrated Audit and Assurance Plan and form the basis of forward assurance delivery,
coordination and reporting.

Page 73

[page left intentionally blank]

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
3 Lines (3LoD) Assurance Lookahead

Period

5

LoD1
Events

Trial
Running in
progress

LoD2 - PPA

LoD3 - TFL (IA)

Periodic Assurance Review P5

(Quarterly based planning)
21 049 Employer’s
Completion Process
To provide assurance that the
controls around the
Employer’s Completion
Process are effective

Cost Forecasting Review TAR
28
DCS 1.2 Assurance Review

Periodic Assurance Review P6

Page 75

6

7

Trial
Running in
progress

Stations
SC3
Trial
Running

Stations Systems Integration
TAR26
Cost Pressures and Root
Cause Review TAR 27

Periodic Assurance Review P7
Trial Running Progress Review
TAR29

Periodic Assurance Review P8

8

Appendix 2

Trial Operations Readiness
Review
DCS 1.2 Assurance Review
and Reporting

21 051 Information
Management and Transfer
To review the effectiveness of
controls around information
management and transfer from
Crossrail to TfL
21 061 Demobilisation of Tier
1 Contractors -phase 2
To provide assurance that the
controls around Tier 1
contractor demobilisation are
adequate and effective
21 062 Disposal of Temporary
Assets
To provide assurance that the
controls around the disposal of
temporary assets are
adequate and effective

LoD3 – IIPAG-EL
DCS (Delivery Control
Schedule) and periodic
reporting (TBC)
Digital Assets and Systems
Configuration Report

DCS (Delivery Control
Schedule)
Operational Readiness

DCS (Delivery Control
Schedule) and periodic
reporting

Senior Advisors
CG1 - Oversight of
RfL/MTR ability to introduce
passenger services in a
robust and timely way from
Trial Operations to Stage
5B and 5C.
PG1 - TO Configuration
and eiTO Criteria, Auto
Reverse, Assurance
Programme for eiTO.
Tracking TVS Testing
Programme
PT1 - Monitoring of
Siemens ELR100
Development Assisting in
the oversight of the
transition of the engineering
resources and processes
from Crossrail to RfLI.
AP1 – Rolling Stock and
Operational Readiness

DCS (Delivery Control
Schedule) and Assurance
Report

PS1 – C660 and Stations
Systems, RfLI
Organisational Readiness

[page left intentionally blank]

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Internal audit reports issued in Q1 2021/22


Appendix 3

Two reports were issued during the quarter

Enterprise Risk

Directorate

ER14 Opening of
the Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

ER14 Opening of
the Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

Ref

Audit title

Summary of Finding

Conclusion

H

M

L

20 508

Demobilisation
of Tier 1
contractors

There were no issues identified as part of this audit.
However, some were noted that will be reported as
part of audit 20 504 on the Alternative Delivery
Model. This audit (20 508) was also split into two
parts, the second part of which will be undertaken
as part of the 2021/22 plan.

Well
Controlled

0

0

0

20 505

Management of
Staff costs

(1) Formal guidance to staff covering Workforce
Planning does not reflect current practice, or in the
case of contract extensions needs to be put in
place.

Requires
Improvement

0

4

1

Page 77

(2) Arrangements for verifying and approving
timesheet or timecard entry vary across the
contractor base. Adherence to process can be
patchy, and in some areas not sufficient to provide
assurance that time is monitored consistently
through to invoice.
(3) Annual Conflict of Interest exercises are focused
on the Senior Leadership Team and do not provide
sufficient coverage of the business. Frequency
needs to increase, and the timeframe within which
escalations considered improved.
(4) Staff change is not yet consolidated as a
Directorate level input to Workforce Planning.
Previously proposals were grouped together and
templated through the Internal Resourcing Group.

[page left intentionally blank]

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Work in progress at the end of Q1 2021/22


Appendix 4

Four audits were in progress at the end of the quarter

Enterprise risk

Directorate

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Ref

Page 79

Audit title

Objective

Current
Status

20 502

Management of works
deferred to LU

To provide assurance that current identified
residual scope is managed effectively

Crossrail

20 504

Alternative Delivery
Model Strategy

To provide assurance that the alternative delivery
model strategy is adequate

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

20 507

CRL HSE framework

To provide assurance over the adequacy and
effectiveness of the HSE framework

In progress

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

20 511

Monitoring Professional
Service and Framework
Development
Consultants (FDCs).

To provide assurance that PSCs and FDCs are being
managed and monitored by Crossrail in an effective
manner

In progress

In progress
Reporting

[page left intentionally blank]

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Work planned to start in Q2 2021/22
 There are four audits planned to start during the quarter
Enterprise risk

Directorate

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Crossrail

ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line
ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line
ER14 Opening of the
Elizabeth Line

Ref

Appendix 5

Audit title

Objective

21 049

Employer’s Completion Process

To provide assurance that the controls around the Employer’s
Completion Process are effective

Crossrail

21 051

Crossrail

21 061

Information Management and
Transfer
Demobilisation of Tier 1
Contractors - phase 2

To review the effectiveness of controls around information
management and transfer from Crossrail to TfL
To provide assurance that the controls around Tier 1 contractor
demobilisation are adequate and effective

Crossrail

21 062

Disposal of Temporary Assets

To provide assurance that the controls around the disposal of
temporary assets are adequate and effective

Page 81

[page left intentionally blank]

Transport for London Audit and Assurance Committee
Changes to the 2021/22 audit plan
 There were three changes to the plan since the last Committee: 2 new and 1 cancellation
Status

Appendix 6

Ref

Audit Title

Audit Comments/objective

21 061

Demobilisation of Tier 1 Contractors -phase
2

New

To provide assurance that the controls around Tier 1 contractor demobilisation are adequate and
effective

21 062

Disposal of Temporary Assets

New

To provide assurance that the controls around the disposal of temporary assets are adequate and
effective

20 503

Readiness for Trial Running

Cancelled

As the name and scope will change and it will take place in the 2021/22 financial year, it was
decided the most practical thing would be to cancel this audit and carry out any work required
under a new title and number. This will be done in consultation with other assurance providers to
ensure no gaps or duplication. At present there is no audit in the 2021/22 plan to cover this topic

Page 83

[page left intentionally blank]

Agenda Item 8
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group
Quarterly Report

This paper will be considered in public
1

Summary

1.1.

This paper presents the Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group
(IIPAG) Quarterly Report for September 2021. It describes the work undertaken
since the last report presented to the Committee in June 2021.

2

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the Independent Investment Programme
Advisory Group’s Quarterly Report and the management response.

3

IIPAG Quarterly Report

3.1

Under its Terms of Reference, IIPAG is required to produce quarterly reports of its
advice on strategic and systemic issues, logs of progress on actions and
recommendations and the effectiveness of the first and second lines of project
and programme assurance.

3.2

IIPAG’s Quarterly Report for September 2021 is included as Appendices 1 and 2
of this paper; this includes IIPAG’s Review of the Effectiveness of First and
Second Lines of defence for 2020/21.

3.3

Figure 1 sets out the status of the IIPAG recommendations at the end of each of
the last three quarters.

Number of recommendations

IIPAG Recommendations
33

31

26
21
15

16

End of Quarter 3
2020/21

Closed in Quarter

21

19

15

End of Quarter 4
2020/21

End of Quarter 1
2021/22

Open and not due

Figure 1: Status of IIPAG Recommendations

Page 85

Overdue

3.4

There were no new unagreed or critical IIPAG recommendations made during the
quarter, and none of the recommendations overdue at the end of Quarter 1 relate
to critical issues.

4

Management Response to IIPAG Quarterly Report

4.1

We welcome the ongoing cross cutting work IIPAG is undertaking, which is very
helpful. The IIPAG recommendations from this work are being discussed by
senior management and acted upon as necessary.

4.2

With respect to the findings outlined in IIPAG’s report on the effectiveness of TfL’s
first and second lines of defence, the TfL Programme Management Office (PMO)
has introduced a number of improvements including new reporting and deep dive
reviews which, having been well received, improved performance visibility and
delivery confidence for targeted projects. However, the PMO shares IIPAG’s view
that there is more that can be done to further strengthen our first line of defence.

4.3

We are actively pursuing, in collaboration with the wider delivery community, the
PMO Continuous Improvement Plan in response to the IIPAG report following the
previous review of the PMO undertaken earlier this year.

4.4

This plan implements a consistent approach to the performance management
against baseline, performance reporting and change control across TfL capital
delivery. Roll out will be progressive with initial focus on TfL’s most significant
projects that will benefit the most. Phase one, covering the Major Projects
Directorate’s projects, is scheduled to complete in October 2021.

4.5

Our guidance and instructions for PMO functions of planning, controls and risk
management will be reviewed and implemented in Quarter 3 of 2021/22. We will
build on this firm foundation to increase consistency of reporting output, simplify
its production and increase focus on analysis and insight.

4.6

In addition to actions specific to the PMO Continuous Improvement Plan, we are
taking immediate actions to focus on and improve performance of existing project
governance (Pathway gates) through training and a refresh of accountabilities,
along with hardening a number of business as usual reports and monitoring.

4.7

Together these measures will result in greater consistency of process application
throughout project delivery, recognising the challenging nature of TfL’s diverse
portfolio of projects, while simplifying processing, improving the data and insight
available to drive business decisions making.

4.8

We welcome the positive feedback from IIPAG on the continued strengthening of
the TfL Project Assurance team and fully understand the points IIPAG make with
respect to ensuring we maintain the calibre of staff recruited into the team.

Page 86

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1: Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group Quarterly Report to Audit and Assurance Committee September 2021
Appendix 2: Review of the Effectiveness of First and Second Lines of Defence - 2020/21
List of Background Papers:
None

Contact Officer:
Email:

Howard Carter, General Counsel
howardcarter@TfL.gov.uk

Page 87

[page left intentionally blank]

Appendix 1
Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group – Quarterly
Report to Audit and Assurance Committee September 2021
This paper will be considered in public

1.

Introduction

1.1. This report to the Committee describes IIPAG’s activities in the period from June to
August 2021. It contains no new strategic recommendations but reports the
outcome of our annual review of the first and second lines of defence.

2.

IIPAG activity

2.1. We engaged in a number of reviews ahead of the July meeting of the Programmes
and Investment Committee:
Sub-Programmes
Public Transport
Healthy Streets
Piccadilly Line Upgrade
Four Lines Modernisation (continuous assurance)
Targeted Reviews
Grid to Gate
2.2. We were also briefed on Road User Charging and the DLR Housing Infrastructure
Fund bid, and reviewed the submission to the Programmes and Investment
Committee on Elephant and Castle Station. We undertook a review of Rotherhithe
Tunnel for Executive governance.
2.3. The accompanying paper from TfL Project Assurance describes management
progress in implementing IIPAG’s recommendations from sub-programme and
project reviews.

3.

Cross-cutting work

3.1. We have recently completed our annual review of the first and second lines of
defence, and a copy of our report is attached for the Committee’s consideration.
This short report assesses the progress made against the recommendations that
we made last year. It is not easy, in such an unusual year, to draw firm
conclusions, but we do think we can detect progress in the impact of first and
second lines of assurance. The tighter financial situation, in itself, inevitably
increases the attention paid to project scrutiny.
3.2. We are, however, sure that there is more to do to strengthen the first line of
defence. This is not a reflection on the quality of people involved, but is a result of
the weaknesses in definition and deployment of project processes that we have
reported on in other cross-cutting reviews. The various cross-TfL improvement
initiatives provide the opportunity to address some of these process and system
weaknesses.

Page 89

3.3. The Project Assurance (second line of defence) team is stronger than it was,
although it is losing key individuals, the replacement of whom will determine
whether this improvement is sustained.
3.4. We have also completed our report on Asset Information. This has been sent to TfL
management, and we plan to submit it to the October meeting of the Programmes
and Investment Committee.
3.5. Our cross-cutting work programme continues to address the systemic issues that
we have identified in sub-programme and targeted reviews. We have two further
reports in preparation:


Progress report on value for money



Contract form

3.6. IIPAG is also undertaking an independent ‘lessons learned’ exercise in relation to
the Silvertown Tunnel procurement review. We will report on this in October 2021.
3.7. Issues have been raised about staff shortages in most of the sub-programme and
targeted reviews we have undertaken. Shortages have been reported in several
areas, notably engineering, commercial, and sponsorship. We have not made a
new recommendation on this subject, but we have raised it with the Programmes
and Investment Committee and understand that it is receiving attention.

Contact Officer: Alison Munro, Chair of IIPAG
AlisonMunro1@tfl.gov.uk

Page 90

Appendix 2

Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group

Review of the Effectiveness of
First and Second lines of Defence – 2020/21

Status:

Final for Submission

Date:

29th July 2021

Author:

Jonathan Simcock

Page 91

1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This short report assesses the progress made against the recommendations that we
made last year. It is not easy, in such an unusual year, to draw firm conclusions, but we
do think we can detect progress in the impact of first and second lines of assurance. The
tighter financial situation, in itself, inevitably increases the attention paid to project
scrutiny.
We are, however, sure that there is more to do to strengthen the first line of defence.
This is not a reflection on the quality of people involved, but is a result of the weaknesses
in definition and deployment of project processes that we have reported on in other
cross-cutting reviews.

The various cross-TfL improvement initiatives provide the

opportunity to address some of these process and system weaknesses.
The Project Assurance (second line of defence) team is stronger than it was, although it
is losing key individuals, the replacement of whom will determine whether this
improvement is sustained.
2.

INTRODUCTION
As in many large organisations, Transport for London deploys a ‘Three Lines of Defence’
Assurance Model on its Investment Programme. The first line of defence is undertaken
by those who own and manage the risk.

For investment projects this means the

sponsors, project managers and functional specialists who run the projects, supported
by the Programme Management Office (PMO), and the senior managers to whom they
report. The purpose of the second line of defence is to provide objective assurance
from outside of the line. For investment projects the main provider of the second line is
the Project Assurance team. The third line of defence for investment projects is mainly
provided by the Independent Investment Programme Advisory Group (IIPAG).
IIPAG is required to provide regular advice on the performance of the first and second
lines of defence. This year we undertook a deep review into the adequacy of the first
and second lines of defence in the Crossrail Programme.1 For the rest of TfL we have
decided to provide a lighter touch assessment by revisiting progress made on the
findings and recommendations we made last year.

1

The IIPAG review of Crossrail Assurance was considered at the March 2021 Elizabeth Line
Committee.
IIPAG Review of the Effectiveness of First and Second Line of Defence 2020/21

Page 92

3.

OUR FINDINGS
The ultimate aim of Project Assurance is better founded and more successful projects.
2020/21 was such an unusual year that it is hard to draw firm conclusions. But our sense
is that although we still see projects which exceed their original costs and schedules,
fewer unsound projects have been initiated and some troubled projects have been
abandoned or paused for reconsideration.

We also think that value for money is

receiving more structured attention than it did.

That said, we still see projects which

have progressed without sufficient strategic consideration, and others with inadequate
provision for risk. Instances of legal challenge to procurement decisions also raise
assurance questions. A business case, and the first line assurance surrounding it,
sometimes seems to us to be a vehicle for approving a predetermined decision, rather
than presenting decision makers with informed optionality.
First Line of Defence
We have again reflected that we regularly encounter excellent staff in the first line of
defence. The need to address stretched resources in some skill areas regularly appears
in our assurance reports but, when adequate resource is applied, we believe that the
sponsors, project managers and functional specialists running TfL’s projects are, by and
large, up to the task.
In any organisation, first line assurance works best when it works through clear, wellestablished and well-understood project initiation and delivery processes. Last year we
were critical about the lack of consistency in areas such as cost estimating, and risk and
contingency provision. We encouraged the organisation to drive towards common, highquality processes, methodologies and tools that can become simply ‘the TfL way’. Since
then, we have gained a fuller understanding of the blockers to applying common process
through our review of the PMO.2
An important conclusion of that review was that some of the underpinning fundamentals
for good project control and assurance are weak or inconsistent. These include clarity
on the project, programme and portfolio hierarchy, and the definition and tracking of
approvals and baselines.

This impacts the control and reporting of projects and

inevitably weakens assurance. A related challenge is that some project processes were
designed for large projects and are over-burdensome for the rest. We do not think that
2

The IIPAG review of the PMO was considered at the May 2021 Programmes and Investment
Committee.
IIPAG Review of the Effectiveness of First and Second Line of Defence 2020/21

Page 93

first line assurance will be as effective as it could be until these underlying issues are
addressed.
Last year we also highlighted the importance of assurance planning. We were keen to
see some simplification of the rather complicated financial, commercial and project
approval processes, since each of these requires its own assurance and the overall
picture becomes very complex. We advocated that each project has an integrated
assurance plan which includes commercial, financial and technical approvals as well as
project gates. We do not believe that the organisation has turned the corner on this yet.
We do think that these challenges are recognised. Since our last report, two crossbusiness improvement groups, known as the Capital Delivery Improvement Group
(CDIG) and the Capital Investment Improvement Group (CIIG) have begun to grip some
of these issues. The Capital Efficiency initiative may help too. We are looking forward
to seeing progress from each of these.
An indication that there is more to do in the first line of defence is that so much is still
picked up in the second line.
Second line of Defence
In our review last year we were complimentary about the Project Assurance team’s grip
on the status of the investment portfolio, and thought that the (then relatively new) Head
of Project Assurance brought sound judgement to which issues should be escalated and
how. We encouraged her to continue to add more weight and credibility to her team,
and to deploy external advisors more purposefully.
We are pleased with the progress that has been made to strengthen the team of
Assurance Review Managers, including through some short-term broadening
assignments from around the organisation. We detect the team being more challenging
about deliverability and risk, which is the key to effective second line assurance. We
have been particularly impressed with the new subject matter experts both of whom have
brought a new level of constructive challenge. It is a shame that the commercial expert
is shortly to leave the organisation. It is important the replacement is someone of equal
strength.
So overall, we are pleased with the progress that has been made in the Project
Assurance team, and we encourage more of the same. We still advocate, for example,

IIPAG Review of the Effectiveness of First and Second Line of Defence 2020/21

Page 94

using project staff from elsewhere in the organisation on specific project assurance
reviews, to the benefit of all.
We also note the progress in deploying External Experts more purposefully. Some deep
expertise has been deployed (for example on the 4LM Programme) while many less
technical assurance activities have been managed perfectly well without recourse to
contractors.
Finally on resources, we think that the elevation of the Head of Project Assurance to the
position of interim Director of Risk and Assurance, leaves large shoes to fill. We hope
that her replacement will have her courage, and her ability to challenge hard without
breaking the crockery.
There have been some experiments with new assurance processes, although the main
tool remains Project Assurance Reviews, supported by Continuous Assurance. At their
best these remain effective. Working with the PMO, the team has trialed more focussed
engagements with the aim of judging a project’s optimistic, most likely, and pessimistic
cost and schedule forecasts. (IIPAG also attended as the third line of defence). These
have been labelled ‘deep-dives’ although in reality they are not very deep. At their best
the internal challenge has helped the first line of defence to be realistic about likely
project outcomes, but these interventions are not a substitute for in-depth second line
assurance.
4.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Broadly speaking, our recommendations mirror those we made last year, updated to
reflect the progress that has been made in the second line of defence, and our greater
understanding of some of the structural impediments to effective first line assurance.


Through its emerging improvement initiatives, the organisation should strengthen the
foundations of control and assurance in the investment programme, aiming for
common, simpler and more focussed processes. (This recommendation essentially
encompasses our more granular recommendations from the review of the PMO.)



The strengthening of the Project Assurance team should continue, and particular
attention should be paid to replacing the Head of Project Assurance and the lead on
commercial assurance.

IIPAG Review of the Effectiveness of First and Second Line of Defence 2020/21

Page 95

[page left intentionally blank]

Agenda Item 9
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

TfL Statement of Accounts Year Ended 31 March 2021 Changes Made Prior to Finalisation

This paper will be considered in public
1

Summary

1.1

The draft TfL Group Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021
were presented at the Committee meeting of 7 June 2021, where the statutory
Chief Finance Officer was authorised to make any adjustments arising from
the ongoing audit work prior to submission to the TfL Board.

1.2

This paper contains information on the material changes to the Statement of
Accounts subsequent to their presentation to the Committee on 7 June 2021.

2

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note this paper.

3

Background

3.1

At the time that the Statement of Accounts were presented to the Committee
on 7 June 2021, the audit was ongoing and there were a number of
adjustments processed in the intervening period.

4

Changes Made Prior to Finalisation

4.1

The following adjustments and disclosure amendments were made to the
accounts prior to their finalisation and approval by the TfL Board:(a) The inclusion of the Independent Auditor’s Report. This was not
incorporated into the draft that went to the 7 June 2021 Committee
meeting as the auditors had not completed their audit work at that time.
(b) The Independent Auditor’s Report for 2020/21 contains a paragraph on
material uncertainty relating to the availability of funding to deliver current
operational and capital plans. As described in more detail in an updated
going concern note to the Accounting Policies section of the financial
statements, this sets out that there is significant uncertainty as to the level
of future longer-term funding to be received from the Government. These
uncertainties cast doubt over TfL’s ability both to continue operating the
level of services currently provided and to continue with all projects
currently included in the capital investment plan. If projects or nonessential elements of in-progress projects are not funded, or if changes in

Page 97

services provided are required, there could be a possible impairment of
carrying values at 31 March 2021, which is not reflected in the financial
statements.
4.2

The Independent Auditor’s Report also contains a qualified conclusion in
relation to the opinion on arrangements put in place to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness of resources. This was in respect of two items:
(a)

the first is in respect of weaknesses previously identified in the
application of procurement rules throughout the organisation. Although
an action plan was drawn up during 2018/19 to address the weaknesses
and corrective actions were complete by 31 March 2021, the actions
implemented were not in place during the entirety of 2020/21; and

(b)

without a longer-term funding agreement in place, TfL is obliged to make
short-term decisions, restricting its ability to make progress on and
commit to key long-term priorities set by policy makers. This means that
TfL is not obtaining the best value for money due to a lack of clarity over
long-term funding.

4.3

In the remainder of the financial statements, going concern disclosures in note
(d) of the Accounting Policies were updated to reflect the details of the 1 June
2021 funding arrangement agreed with the Department for Transport, and the
continued uncertainty surrounding longer-term funding.

4.4

Minor number changes were made to the format of the Cash Flow Statements
for the Corporation and Group, and to the split of revenue between
component categories in the revenue note. Disclosures on Private Finance
Initiative assets included with property plant and equipment in note 13 were
also updated.

4.5

Other minor cosmetic and wording changes have also been made throughout.
Appendix 1 shows all changes made to the Statement of Accounts since the
version presented to the Committee on 7 June 2021.

4.6

On 20 July 2021, it was reported to TfL that a late audit adjustment had been
made to increase the asset values of the TfL Pension Fund in the pension
fund’s own statutory financial statements by £75m. This increase to the
scheme’s asset values at 31 March 2021 was not reflected in the TfL
Statement of Accounts due to the late stage at which it was identified, and the
fact that the increase is not material in relation to the total asset values of the
pension scheme. Had it been included, there would have been no impact on
the usable reserves of the Corporation or Group.

Page 98

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1- Tracked changes version of the Statement of Accounts against the
version presented to the Audit and Assurance Committee on 7 June
2021
List of Background Papers:
None

Contact:
Email:

Patrick Doig, Statutory Chief Finance Officer
patrickdoig@tfL.gov.uk

Page 99

[page left intentionally blank]

Tracked changes version of the Statement of
Accounts against the version presented to the Audit and
Assurance Committee on 7 June 2021

Page 101

Page 102

Page 103

Page 104

Page 105

Page 106

Page 107

•

•
•
•

Page 108

•

Page 109

Page 110



Page 111






Page 112

Page 113

Page 114

Page 115

Page 116

Page 117

Page 118






Page 119

Page 120

200
180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
-

London Underground

Elizabeth line

Page 121

Buses

Rail

Page 122

Page 123

Page 124

Page 125

Page 126

Page 127

Page 128

Page 129

Page 130

Page 131

Page 132

Page 133

Page 134

Page 135

Page 136

Page 137

Page 138

Page 139

Page 140

Page 141

Page 142

Page 143

Page 144

Page 145







Page 146






Page 147






















Page 148






















Page 149




















Page 150
























Page 151

Page 152






Page 153




Page 154







Page 155

Page 156












Page 157
















Page 158

Page 159




















Page 160








Page 161

-

-

-

-

-

Page 162





Page 163

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Page 164

-

-

-

-

-

Page 165

Page 166

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Page 167

Crossrail continues to be informed by
the latest guidance from the
Government and Public Health England.

-

-

-

-

Page 168

-

-

-

Page 169

Page 170







Page 171



Page 172





Page 173

Page 174
















Page 175



Page 176

Page 177

Page 178

Page 179

Page 180

Page 181

Page 182

Note

37

Page 183

38

37
38

Page 184

Page 185

Page 186

Page 187

Page 188

Page 189

Page 190

Page 191

Page 192

Page 193

Page 194

Page 195








Page 196



Page 197









Page 198







Page 199









Page 200





Page 201

Page 202

Page 203

Page 204

Page 205

Page 206

Page 207










Page 208

Page 209

Page 210

Page 211

Page 212

Page 213

Page 214

Page 215








Page 216






Page 217








Page 218



Page 219

Page 220

Page 221










Page 222













Page 223

Page 224





Page 225

Page 226






Page 227

2020
£m
Passenger income
Revenue in respect of free travel for older and disabled
customers

% of
total

4,432.9

76.9

317.9

5.5

Congestion Charging

247.0

4.3

Ultra Low Emission Zone charges

149.1

2.6

5.5

0.1

Charges to London Boroughs and Local Authorities

15.3

0.3

Charges to transport operators

10.2

0.2

Road Network compliance income

69.0

1.2

158.3

2.7

Rents receivable

93.9

1.6

Contributions from third parties to operating costs

77.7

1.3

Taxi licensing

36.7

0.6

Ticket and photocard commission income

14.4

0.3

General fees and charges

13.7

0.2

ATM and car parking income

21.7

0.4

Museum income

11.4

0.2

Training and specialist services

16.7

0.3

Cycle hire scheme

11.0

0.2

Other

59.8

1.1

5,762.2

100.0

Low Emission Zone charges

Commercial advertising receipts

Page 228

Page 229

Page 230

Page 231

Page 232

Page 233

Page 234












Page 235








Page 236

Page 237

Page 238

Page 239

Page 240

Page 241

Page 242

Page 243

Page 244











Page 245

.

Additions

Amortisation and impairment

Amortisation charge for the year

Intangible assets under construction comprise software assets under development by the Group.

Page 246

Page 247

Page 248

34,182.4

4,976.6

2,129.7

19,252.7

60,541.4

14,754.8

2,266.1

1,427.9

-

18,448.8

Page 249

Page 250

Page 251

Page 252

Page 253

Page 254

Page 255

Page 256

Page 257

Page 258

Page 259

Page 260

Page 261

Page 262

Page 263




Page 264

Page 265

(10)%

1,427.2

(2.16)%

1,443.2

(1.06)%

1,357.5

(6.94)%

1,331.1

(8.75)%

1,246.0

(14.58)%

(5)%

1,484.8

1.79%

1,419.8

(2.67)%

1,408.2

(3.46)%

1,384.3

(5.10)%

1,294.7

(11.24)%

0%

1,542.3

5.73%

1,474.2

1.06%

1,458.7

0.00%

1,437.8

(1.43)%

1,343.9

(7.87)%

5%

1,599.6

9.66%

1,528.6

4.79%

1,509.3

3.47%

1,490.9

2.21%

1,392.6

(4.53)%

10%

1,656.9

13.59%

1,583.0

8.52%

1,559.9

6.94%

1,544.2

5.86%

1,441.6

(1.17)%

Page 266

Page 267

Page 268

Page 269

At 31 March

Page 270

Net assets at 100%
Percentage held by the TfL Group

Page 271

At 31 December

Page 272

Page 273

Page 274

Page 275

Group
2020
£m
Trade debtors

99.7

Capital debtors

22.7

Other debtors

22.8

Other tax and social security

61.1
118.2

Grant debtors

1.7

Interest debtors

58.5

Contract assets: accrued income

128.1

Prepayments for goods and services

512.8

Other debtors

59.4

Prepayments for goods and services

38.0
97.4

Page 276

Page 277

15

15

Page 278

Page 279

Page 280

Page 281

Trade creditors

Page 282

Page 283

Page 284

Page 285

Page 286

Page 287

Page 288

Page 289

Page 290

Page 291

Page 292

.

Page 293

Page 294

Page 295

Page 296

Page 297





Page 298

Page 299

Page 300

Page 301

Page 302

)

Page 303

Page 304

Page 305

Page 306

Page 307

Page 308

Page 309

Page 310

Page 311

Page 312




















Page 313

Page 314

Page 315

Page 316

Page 317

Page 318









Page 319









Page 320

Page 321

Page 322

Page 323

Page 324

Page 325

Page 326

Page 327

Page 328

Page 329

Page 330

Page 331

Page 332

Page 333

Page 334





Page 335

Page 336

Balance at 1 April and 31 March

Page 337

Group
2021
£m

Group Corporation
2021
2020
£m
£m

466.1

466.1

-

Corporation
2020
£m
-

Page 338

Page 339

Total capital expenditure

Page 340

Page 341

Page 342

Page 343

Page 344

Page 345

Page 346

Agenda Item 10
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Effectiveness Review of the External Auditors

This paper will be considered in public
1

Summary

1.1

To report to the Committee on external auditor effectiveness.

1.2

A more detailed paper is included on Part 2 of the agenda which contains
exempt supplemental information that is exempt from publication by virtue of
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 in that it
contains detailed comments on Ernst & Young’s (EY’s) performance during
the audit, which are commercially sensitive. Any discussion of that exempt
information must take place after the press and public have been excluded
from this meeting.

2

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the paper and the exempt supplemental
information on Part 2 of the agenda.

3

Background

3.1

The Committee’s Terms of Reference require it to review formally the
performance of the external auditors at least annually. This review covers the
performance of the external auditors of all parts of the TfL Group where EY
are auditor.

3.2

The Terms of Reference do not specify the means by which auditor
performance is to be assessed. Other guidance is available, one of the more
recent of which is the Financial Reporting Council 2016 publication “Guidance
on Audit Committees”. This is an update of guidance first published in 2003
and subsequently updated in 2008. It is based on the UK Corporate
Governance Code, and although this relates to listed companies, the
principles are also relevant to entities such as TfL.

3.3

The Guidance identifies four criteria in assessing external auditors:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

qualification;
expertise and resources;
effectiveness; and
independence.

Page 347

3.4

EY are the auditors of all entities within the TfL Group (with the exception of
London Transport Museum which was audited by Moore Kingston Smith LLP).
Both EY and Moore Kingston Smith LLP are “registered auditors” and are
required to comply with The Statutory Auditors and Third Country Auditors
Regulations 2016 which cover such matters as independence and integrity,
maintaining competence, compliance with technical standards and monitoring
compliance with the Regulations. These requirements ensure that the criterion
regarding qualification is addressed.

3.5

Independence of the external auditors is dealt with through separate reports
to the Committee on fees for non-audit services and on independence and
objectivity, both reported twice a year. The external auditors are appointed by
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, the successor body to the Audit
Commission, under a statutory process, and this provides additional
safeguards in terms of independence.

3.6

This paper deals with assessing the remaining two criteria in the Guidance,
namely the effectiveness, and also the expertise and resources, of EY as
external auditors. The Museum is not material to the Group as a whole and
the effectiveness of the Museum audit was discussed by its own Audit
Committee.

4

Methodology for Assessing External Auditor Effectiveness
and Expertise

4.1

A questionnaire was devised and distributed to key finance staff and senior
management to obtain their views on the conduct and effectiveness of the
external audit, including the expertise and resources of the external auditors.

4.2

A separate questionnaire was also devised and distributed to Committee
Members to assess the quality and effectiveness of EY’s performance and
reporting across the Group in respect of the audit of the year ended 31 March
2021.

4.3

Responses from key staff were sought under four main headings:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

4.4

Responses from Committee Members were sought under the headings:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

4.5

audit planning and preparation;
field work;
closing meetings and sign-off; and
general.

assessing the auditor’s judgements about materiality;
risk assessment;
nature and extent of audit work; and
audit conclusions and auditor reporting.

The questionnaires provided respondents with an opportunity to comment on
the specific questions and also respond on more general free-form topics.

Page 348

4.6

Questionnaires were sent out to all parts of the business and to Committee
Members, and most were completed and returned. Some parts of the
business consolidated their responses into one return for that business unit.
The Finance Shared Services Centre and the Group Accounting team were
also covered.

4.7

Respondents were asked to score responses on a 1 to 3 scale, with 3 being
the top score. Average scores were calculated for each part of the
questionnaire.

5

Conclusions on External Auditor Effectiveness and Expertise

5.1

Overall, Members were satisfied with EY’s performance as external auditors
during 2020/21. Average scores ranged from 2.7-3.0.

5.2

TfL finance staff were also generally satisfied with EY performance. Given
that this was the sixth year of EY as auditors the scores on average were
higher than prior years with individual questions achieving average scores
ranging from 2.4-3.0 (2019/20 2.1-3.0). The average score across all
questions was 2.8 (2019/20 2.7).

5.3

It was noted that despite the challenges of remote working, the audit was well
managed, and EY once again delivered a thorough audit to a tight timeframe.
Some minor areas of improvement have been communicated to EY.

5.4

The questionnaire asked if there were any members of the audit team that TfL
staff would single out for their strong personal contribution. Several names
were mentioned and these have been fed back to the partners.

List of appendices to this report:
Exempt supplementary information is included in a paper on Part 2 of the agenda.
List of Background Papers:
None

Contact:
Email:

Patrick Doig, Statutory Chief Finance Officer
patrickdoig@tfL.gov.uk

Page 349

[page left intentionally blank]

Agenda Item 11
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Appointment of External Auditors

This paper will be considered in public
1

Summary

1.1

This report updates the Committee on the arrangements for appointing
external auditors for TfL and its subsidiaries. The paper considers the
options available under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act)
and makes a recommendation for compliance.

2

Recommendation

1.1

The Committee is asked to approve the proposal to opt in to the national
scheme for the appointment of auditors for a period of five years
commencing with the audit of the 2023/24 financial year.

3

Background

3.1

TfL’s current external auditors are Ernst & Young LLP, who were originally
appointed to undertake the audit for the financial years 2015/16 and 2016/17.
This contract was extended by one year to 2017/18 by Public Sector Audit
Appointments Limited (PSAA) prior to their reappointment by PSAA for the
five-year appointing period 2018/19 to 2022/23.

3.2

During Autumn 2021, TfL, together with other local authority bodies, will need
to make important decisions about its external audit arrangements for the
period commencing from the financial year 2023/24. The existing
arrangements are in place until 2022/23.Under the Act, local bodies have
options to arrange their own procurement and make the appointment
themselves or in conjunction with other bodies, or they can join and take
advantage of the national collective scheme administered by PSAA. These
options however relate only to the appointment of an auditor to the TfL
Corporation itself. Transport Trading Limited (TTL) and its subsidiaries are
obliged to undergo a separate commercial tender and appointment process
for the appointment of their auditor.

4

Options for Local Appointment of External Auditors

4.1

The Act sets out four broad options for the appointment of an auditor. These
are:
(a) to ask another authority's Auditor Panel to carry out the functions of the
authority in question or set up a Joint Auditor Panel with unrelated local

Page 351

authorities;
(b) to set up a Joint Auditor Panel together with other Greater
London Authority (GLA) bodies
(c) to make a stand-alone appointment through a TfL-only Audit Panel; and
(d) to opt-in to a Sector Led Body appointed by the Secretary of State under
the Act.
4.2

All of the options require a local auditor to be appointed not later than 31
December in the financial year preceding the financial year of the
accounts to be audited. So for the audit of the accounts of the 2023/24
financial year, there must be an auditor appointed by 31 December
2022.

4.3

TfL’s views on the advantages and disadvantages of each option are
considered below.

5

Option (a): Ask another authority's Auditor Panel to carry out
the functions of the authority in question or set up a Joint
Auditor Panel with unrelated local authorities

5.1

TfL differs in terms of both size and nature of activities to other eligible Local
Authority bodies to such an extent that its considerations and priorities in
selecting an auditor are also significantly different. The requirement for the
audit of the TTL Group to be considered in appointing an auditor for the
Corporation (and the strong preference that both appointment processes are
aligned to result in the same auditor being appointed for the overall TfL
Group) is an added layer of complexity. It is therefore not considered
generally beneficial or appropriate for TfL to set up a Joint Auditor Panel with
unrelated local authorities or to ask another authority’s panel to carry out its
Auditor appointment duties.

5.2

This option is therefore not recommended.

6

Option (b): Set up a Joint Auditor Panel with other GLA
bodies

6.1

There is scope for investigating the possibility that a Joint Auditor Panel could
be established between TfL and other functional bodies of the GLA. This
would have some cost saving advantages in terms of reducing the duplication
of effort in tendering separately for audits for each of the constituent bodies
and also the costs of running separate Auditor Panels. However, it would be
necessary to consider how any Joint Panel could be suitably constituted and
empowered to be able properly to take into account TfL’s particular
circumstances, risk profile and audit requirements. It would also require the
scope of the Joint Auditor Panel to be extended to include responsibility for
the appointment of an auditor to the TTL Group of companies to avoid the
issues highlighted in section 5.1 above.

6.2

Any Auditor Panel would also need to be set up with a majority of independent
members as well as an independent chair. Independent members for this
purpose specifically exclude board members, officers or employees of the
local authority or any entity connected with it (which for TfL includes all
Page 352

constituent bodies of the GLA and any entity with a key contractual
relationship with any of them) and close families and friends of them. It also
specifically excludes anyone who would have been considered connected at
any point within the previous five years. Appointment of sufficient numbers of
independent panel members, who have the requisite knowledge of TfL’s
organisational structure and audit requirements, would be challenging.
6.3

This option is therefore not recommended.

7

Option (c): Make a Stand-Alone Appointment through a TfLonly Auditor Panel

7.1

This option would give TfL the scope to select panel members with an
appropriate skill set and understanding of TfL's particular circumstances that
would enable the panel to make an informed choice as to the most suitable
audit firm for the TfL Group. It would also provide TfL the flexibility to set up a
panel with the authority to combine both the TfL and TTL audit tenders into a
single exercise - thus maximising the efficiency of the selection process whilst
minimising the risk of incurring unnecessary audit fees.

7.2

The challenge remains, however, as to how a sufficient majority of
appropriately qualified and knowledgeable and yet completely independent
members could be identified and recruited to sit on a TfL Auditor Panel. As
under Option (b), members would need to be considered independent, not
only of TfL itself, but again of any constituent body of the wider GLA family.

7.3

This option is therefore not recommended.

8

Option (d): Opt-in to a Sector Led Body

8.1

PSAA, the company operating the existing transitional arrangements for
auditor appointments, has been specified as an appointing person under the
Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (the Regulations). This
gives it the power to make auditor appointments and set fees on behalf of
bodies who opt in, in accordance with the regulations. There is no fee levied
directly by the PSAA to the local authorities for appointing auditors or for
managing the arrangements. These costs are instead recovered through audit
fees set by PSAA. The company is staffed by a team with significant
experience of working within the context of the Regulations to appoint
auditors, manage contracts with audit firms, and set and determine audit fees.

8.2

When appointment options were last considered by the Audit and Assurance
Committee in 2016/17, the PSAA route was considered the most attractive as
it avoids the challenges of establishing an independent auditor panel, and the
administrative burden on TfL of managing its own procurement. Our
experience to date has shown that PSAA have a robust process to achieve
value for money, and they have been able to accommodate TfL’s requirement
for the same auditor for TfL and the wider Transport Trading Group through
the consultation provisions in their appointment process.

8.3

This option is therefore recommended.

Page 353

9

Financial Implications

9.1

The annual audit fee for TfL Group and Corporation for the year ending 31
March 2022 has been set at £120,062. This excludes the fee for the audit of
TTL and its subsidiaries, which, for 2020/21 totalled £1.517m. Due to changes
in the audit market, and increased audit requirements, it is likely that the TfL
element will increase. However, the national scheme is still expected to result
in a lower fee than that which would be achievable if TfL were negotiating its
audit fee on a standalone basis. In addition, by opting in to the national
scheme TfL avoids the cost of establishing and maintaining an auditor
appointment panel.

10

Next Steps

10.1

PSAA has recently conducted a consultation outlining its planned
procurement strategy for the next audit term alongside a separate
engagement exercise to understand the views of the audit market. It’s aims
are to ensure that an auditor is appointed to all local authorities for the full
proposed five year term, whilst achieving value for money and aiming for a
procurement and audit management process that reduces the delays
experienced in the local authority audits over the last couple of years.

10.2

Under the PSAA proposals, audit appointments are likely to be for five years
starting with the year ending 31 March 2024. Eligible bodies will be invited to
opt in during an invitation period expected to launch in September 2021 and
run through to January 2002.

10.3 PSAA is intending to:
(a)

publish the strategy and process for making individual auditor
appointments for opted-in bodies from 2023/24 during spring/summer
2022;

(b)

consult with opted-in bodies on proposed auditor appointments during
the late summer/autumn 2022; and

(c)

confirm all auditor appointments by 31 December 2022.

10.4 After opting in to the national scheme, a tender process will be launched
internally by TfL for the audit of TTL and its subsidiaries for the same time
period as that proposed under the national scheme.

List of appendices to this report:
None
List of Background Papers:
None

Contact:
Email:

Patrick Doig, Statutory Chief Finance Officer
patrickdoig@tfL.gov.uk
Page 354

Agenda Item 12
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Freedom of Information Update

This paper will be considered in public
1.

Summary

1.1

The Freedom of Information (FOI) Act provides public access to information held
by public authorities. The Environmental Information Regulations (EIR) provide a
similar right of access to information which relates to the environment. This
legislation is overseen by the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO), the
independent regulator enforcing the effective processing of requests by public
authorities. This paper provides an overview of our performance in processing
FOI and EIR requests in 2020/21, as well as 2021/22 to date.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the paper.

3.

Background

3.1

The ICO currently expects public authorities to reply to at least 90 per cent of all
FOI and EIR requests within the statutory deadline (usually 20 working days – the
deadline can be extended for FOI requests in the event more time is required to
assess whether the public interest favours using an exemption, to withhold
information, or for complex EIR requests). TfL has exceeded this target annually
since meeting it for the first time in 2017/18.

4.

Current Performance

4.1

In 2020/21 TfL replied to 2,202 requests within the statutory deadline from a total
of 2,203 received. This provides a response rate of 99.95 per cent of replies being
made within the statutory deadline (including 65 replies which were on time but
where the deadline was extended). This figure is the highest percentage of
requests replied to on time within a financial year by TfL since the FOI Act and
EIR came fully into force in 2005, and a 0.55 per cent increase on the previous
year which was the previous highest, at 99.4 per cent.

4.2

Due to the effect of the coronavirus pandemic, the overall number of requests
received in 2020/21 showed a 30 per cent decrease on the preceding year (2,203
compared to 3,169). Despite the significant pressures the pandemic placed on
TfL only one reply was not issued within the statutory deadline, a reduction of 19
from the previous year.

4.3

Appendix 1 provides the response rate broken down by period since 2018/19, as
well as the periods within 2021/22 for which we have complete figures so far.

Page 355

4.4

Appendix 2 shows the number of FOI and EIR requests received in each period
since 2018/19, along with a breakdown of cases categorised as complex and
non-complex. Requests are classed as ‘complex’ when they have potential to
create media or political interest.

4.5

Around 74 per cent of all FOI and EIR requests are responded to in full, with 12
per cent relying on a partial exemption and 14 per cent being refused in full due to
an applicable exemption. The most common reasons for refusals are because the
information is or will be published (29 per cent of all exemptions) or because the
time needed to respond to the request exceeds the applicable limit of 18 hours
(also 29 per cent of all exemptions). A further eight per cent of all exemptions
apply to protect the personal data of individuals.

5.

FOI Caseload

5.1

FOI requests are made about the full range of TfL’s responsibilities, and perhaps
the most striking aspect of the caseload is its variety. In 2020/21 examples of
notable clusters of requests included those around the Streetspace Programme
and Low Traffic Neighbourhoods in particular, changes to Congestion Charging,
face covering enforcement and the impact of coronavirus on TfL and our
response to it.

5.2

In order to support TfL in prioritising its operational resources on managing the
coronavirus response and then restart and recovery, across 2020/21 we asked
people to consider not making FOI or EIR requests. This messaging (which is no
longer being used), along with the reduced passenger count across the network,
led to a significant drop in request volumes.

5.3

2020/21 saw an average of 169 FOI/EIR requests per period compared with an
average of 240 over the three years previous, a drop of 29.5 per cent. In line with
the reduction in passenger levels, requests relating to London Underground
experienced the biggest reduction in volume with a drop of 58 per cent in
requests across 2020/21, compared with the previous year.

5.4

Current volumes in 2021/22 are 40 per cent higher than those from the first
quarter of 2020/21 and we can expect this to increase further as more
passengers return to the network and make use of our services. However,
volumes are currently around 21 per cent below the figure for the first quarter of
2019/20. Despite the increase in volumes and the continued pressure on TfL as a
result of the pandemic, we continue to respond to all of these requests within the
statutory deadline, having responded on time to 100 per cent of the 833 requests
we have processed this financial year, up to 6 September 2021.

5.5

Appendix 3 directly compares the difference in volumes both cumulatively and by
period across the first four periods of 2019/20 to 2021/22.

5.6

Replies to all requests received in 2020/21 were published on the TfL website,
which supports the Transparency Strategy, and we have been able to answer
more requests by simply referring to previously published replies, or other
information published on the website. Approximately 30 per cent of all exemptions

Page 356

applied are because the information is already published, or intended for future
publication.

6.

Reviews and Appeals

6.1

The progress made in achieving a consistently high response rate across all
areas of TfL has required a sustained effort and we maintain a commitment and
focus across the organisation on access to information legislation to keep this
going.

6.2

Should a requester be unhappy with a response to their FOI or EIR request, they
have the right to request an internal review into the handling of their request. As a
result of the improvements highlighted above, and despite the severe pressures
the pandemic placed on TfL, we have reduced both the number and proportion of
these complaints – 123 (3.9 per cent of 2019/20 caseload) to 71 (3.2 per cent of
2020/21 caseload).

6.3

Of the 71 internal review requests into the handling of an FOI or EIR request,
three (4.2 per cent, or 0.13 per cent of the total caseload) were escalated to the
ICO by the requester for further consideration. However, we did not receive any
Decision Notices from the ICO in 2020/21 recording their formal conclusion on
our compliance as two of the cases escalated to the ICO were resolved informally
and one was withdrawn.

6.4

The three requests referred to the ICO in 2020/21 is the lowest on record for TfL
since the FOI Act and EIR came fully into force in 2005. This is also the first time
we have not had a single Decision Notice issued in relation to our compliance.
This, along with the reduction in the proportion of internal review requests,
appears to suggest that requesters are increasingly satisfied with the way TfL has
approached their request and, specifically, complied with the legislation. This
goes some way to improving how open and transparent TfL is considered to be.

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1 – FOI/EIR response rate by period 2018 to 2021
Appendix 2 – FOI/EIR request volumes by period 2018 to 2021
Appendix 3 – Comparison of Periods 1 to 4 FOI/EIR request volumes 2019 to 2021
List of Background Papers:
None

Contact Officer:
Email:

Howard Carter, General Counsel
howardcarter@tfl.gov.uk

Page 357

[page left intentionally blank]

Appendix 1 - FOI/EIR Response rate 2018/19 to 2021/22
Cumulative Response Rate
Response Rate
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Period 1
94.0%
99.0%
100.0%
100.0%
94.0%
99.0%
100.0%
100.0%
Period 2
95.3%
99.6%
100.0%
100.0%
94.6%
99.3%
100.0%
100.0%
Period 3
96.7%
100.0%
100.0%
95.4%
99.6%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
Period 4
97.6%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
96.0%
99.7%
100.0%
100.0%
Period 5
95.8%
98.1%
100.0%
96.0%
99.3%
100.0%
Period 6
94.2%
98.8%
100.0%
95.7%
99.2%
100.0%
Period 7
95.3%
98.7%
100.0%
95.6%
99.2%
100.0%
Period 8
96.2%
99.2%
100.0%
95.7%
99.2%
100.0%
Period 9
93.7%
100.0%
100.0%
95.5%
99.3%
100.0%
Period 10
90.2%
100.0%
100.0%
95.0%
99.3%
100.0%
Period 11
97.3%
99.7%
100.0%
95.3%
99.4%
100.0%
Period 12
96.3%
99.3%
99.5%
95.4%
99.4%
99.9%
Period 13
99.6%
99.6%
100.0%
95.7%
99.4%
100.0%
End of Year
95.7%
99.4%
99.95%
95.7%
99.4%
99.95%

Page 359

FOI Response Rate
100.0%

97.5%
Response Rate 2018/19
Response Rate 2019/20
Response Rate 2020/21

95.0%

Response Rate 2021/22
Cumulative Response Rate 2018/19
Cumulative Response Rate 2019/20

92.5%

Cumulative Response Rate 2020/21
Cumulative Response Rate 2021/22

90.0%
End of Year

TfL RESTRICTED

Period 13

Period 12

Period 11

Period 10

Period 9

Period 8

Period 7

Period 6

Period 5

Period 4

Period 3

Period 2

Period 1

#

[page left intentionally blank]

Appendix 2 - FOI/EIR requests logged per period 2018/19 to 2021/22
Total requests logged
Complex logged
Non-complex logged
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Period 1
216
210
100
185
47
82
19
40
169
128
81
145
36
61
27
42
176
179
76
125
Period 2
212
240
103
167
40
57
33
43
204
175
119
150
Period 3
244
232
152
193
Period 4
250
243
162
181
52
81
34
37
198
162
128
144
Period 5
239
265
149
40
74
32
199
191
117
Period 6
206
253
205
42
52
51
164
201
154
Period 7
212
228
192
54
50
56
158
178
136
61
57
154
186
136
Period 8
212
247
193
58
Period 9
239
244
201
58
70
55
181
174
146
Period 10
193
167
154
50
28
36
143
139
118
Period 11
264
325
176
88
79
42
176
246
134
Period 12
267
291
196
70
80
46
197
211
150
Period 13
273
224
220
81
67
45
192
157
175
End of Year
3027
3169
2203
716
842
533
2311
2327
1670

Total FOI requests logged per period
350
300
250

Total requests logged 2018/19

200

Total requests logged 2019/20
Total requests logged 2020/21

150

Total requests logged 2021/22

100
50
0

Period 1

Period 2

Period 3

Period 4

Period 5

Period 6

Period 7

Period 8

#

Period 9

TfL
RESTRICTED
Page
361

Period 10 Period 11 Period 12 Period 13

[page left intentionally blank]

Appendix 3 - Comparison of FOI/EIR volumes Periods 1-4 2019/20 to 2021/22

Page 363

[page left intentionally blank]

Agenda Item 13
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Finance Control Environment Trend Indicators and
Transformation Update

This paper will be considered in public
1

Summary

1.1

To report to the Committee on the Financial Control Environment Trend
Indicators.

1.2

This paper provides an update to the Committee on the savings from the
implementation of end-to-end processes organisations across TfL’s Finance
and Business Services teams as a result of the transformation of both
Finance and Business Services.

2

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the paper.

3

Background

3.1

This paper reports on the Quarter 1 2021/22 Financial Control Environment
Trend Indicators, that informs the Committee as to the control environment
across Finance, Business Services and Procurement.

3.2

At the Committee meeting of 17 March 2021, we presented a summary of the
implementation of end-to-end process and were requested to bring back a
measure of how the transformation delivered against savings targets and how
we measured them.

3.3

In March 2020, TfL launched its new Business Services Function (BSF), as
well as a new Finance Controls and Systems team under Group Finance. The
BSF was an amalgamation of several teams who performed transactional
activities including the Finance Shared Service Centre, Human Resource
Services and Master Data Management. These teams are a key part of TfL’s
strategy to create efficiency, ensure controls are operating effectively and
looking for process efficiencies.

4

Savings

4.1

The Finance and Business Services Transformation programme set a target
for reduction in staff costs for the transactional activities of £7m per annum.
This was set as part of an overall 30 per cent reduction in costs for Finance

Page 365

activities (both those completed in the Finance teams and the old Finance
Services Centre) compared to the original budget set for 2018/19.
4.2

As shown in Appendix 1, the actual costs have reduced by £7.2m from
£24.5m in 2018/19 to £17.3m in 2020/21. This is due to a headcount
reduction of 112 from 367 FTE to 255 FTE.

4.3

In addition to delivering these direct staff cost savings, the BSF continues to
deliver savings for TfL. As shown in Appendix 1, in 2020/21 the BSF delivered
£7.51m of additional benefits from TfL. This has been delivered through
activities such as stopping duplicate payments, avoiding severance costs by
placing displaced employees into alternative roles and efficient hiring of nonpermanent labour.

5

Next Steps

5.1

The last 18 months have been a challenging environment to drive and deliver
change, with the dual impacts of the coronavirus pandemic and remote
working. The combined Chief Finance Officer teams, along with our Business
Services teams have worked closely and collaboratively to move forward as
quickly as possible with our improvement agenda.

5.2

We will continue to monitor our benefits and report back to the Committee
annually.

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1 – Financial Indicators Dashboard, including Finance and Business
Services Transformation Transactional Benefits and Savings
List of Background Papers:
Finance and Business Services – end to end processes (17 March 2021 Audit and
Assurance Committee)

Contact:
Email:

Patrick Doig, Statutory Chief Finance Officer
patrickdoig@tfl.gov.uk

Page 366

TfL Audit & Assurance
Committee
Performance Metrics
Quarter 1, 2021/22 – Appendix 1
15 September 2021
Page 367

1

Audit Committee
performance metrics
to Q1, 2021/22

Forecasting Accuracy
Quarterly Forecasting Accuracy*
£m

Q2 2021

Operating Income
Variance to reported Budget
Operating Cost

Q1 2021/22 variances driven by:

Page 368

Total operating income: £196m higher than
Budget. Passenger income is £175m better
as there was initially a strong recovery
followed by a flattening in journey
numbers. Total journeys are 153 million, 47
per cent higher than Budget. Despite this
upside, income remains at just over 50 per
cent of pre-pandemic levels.
Other operating income: £21m higher driven
by Road User Charging,
Operating costs: £71m lower than Budget,
owing to cost control of staff costs, lower
bus contract costs, and project costs that
were brought forward into 2020/21.
Total capital expenditure (excluding
Crossrail): £191m lower than Budget, driven
by a slower ramp up-up in project work as a
result of funding uncertainty, plus some
costs were brought forward into 2020/21, as
well as timing differences across
programmes.

2

Variance to reported Budget
Capital Delivery**
Variance to reported Budget
Net Cashflow
Variance to reported Budget

Q3 2021 Q4 2021 Q1 2022

649

697

699

800

-

100

29

196

(1,457)

(1,517)

(1,967)

(1,487)

-

29

268

71

(245)

(289)

(517)

(271)

-

27

20

191

70

87

(78)

42

-

98

(5)

(163)

YTD Forecasting Accuracy - Q1 2021/22
£m

YTD

Operating Income
Actual

800

Budget

604

Operating Cost
Actual

(1,487)

Budget

(1,558)

Capital Delivery
Actual

(271)

Budget

(461)

Net Cashflow
Actual

42

Budget

205

* FY21 reporting is against the 2020/21 Revised Budget; FY22 reporting is against the March Board approved Budget
** Total TfL capital expenditure excludes amounts relating to Crossrail

Audit Committee
performance metrics to
Q1, 21/22
Value of open items > 30 days on the bank
reconciliation has remained steady but
volume has dropped significantly as a large
volume of postings with low value were
cleared in Q1 in some payroll related bank
accounts. The number of open items
continues to be reviewed by the BSF O2C
team to actively clear out the more than 30
days.

Quarterly Figures
£m

Q2 20/21

Q3 20/21

Q4 20/21

Q1 21/22

Open Items < 30 days (£m Value)

(137.7)

(18.6)

(7.8)

(11.8)

Open Items > 30 days (£m Value)

2.80

4.90

0.05

0.06

Open Items < 30 days (Volume)

1,072

935

946

871

Open Items > 30 days (Volume)

2,205

1,819

1,927

1,263

Automated

6,650

6,710

8,946

7,145

Manual

1,709

2,075

1,524

1,782

Automated

80%

76%

85%

80%

Manual

20%

24%

15%

20%

Auto ma ted Po stings %

Page 369

Volume of manual postings have increased
significantly from 1 .5k to 1 .8k due to more
invoices raised in Q4 last fiscal year which
resulted to more bank/manual postings in
Q1 2021 -22. These receipts cannot be
allocated automatically hence, the increase
in the manual postings in Q1 . The increase
in the number of invoices last Q4 mainly
relates to Buses, Surface, and LU.

Processing payments

143.00
Open Items > 30 days (Volume)

Open Items > 30 days (Value)
6.00

3

5.00

2,000

4.00

£m

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

2,500

1,500

3.00
1,000

2.00

Finance/BSF will continue to review manual
postings to seek further automation
opportunities.

Automated Postings %

1.00

500

0.00

0

Q2 20/21

Q3 20/21

Q4 20/21

Q1 21/22

Q2 20/21

Q3 20/21

Q4 20/21

Q1 21/22

Q2 20/21

Q3 20/21

Q4 20/21

Automated

Manual

Q1 21/22

Audit Committee
performance metrics to
Q1, 21/22

Procurement activity
Retrospective PO Spend

Benefit Delivery

There continues to be some variances
period on period with the KPIs . These
are highlighted below:

Benefits Delivery:
• Start of reporting on benefit delivery
with launch of Benefit methodology
in April 21.

Page 370

Retrospective PO by Value and Volume:
• Monitoring and behaviour change
initiative continues with the PSCIP
programme deploying new tools
(Ariba) and processes over the next
FY.
• Value of Retrospective PO drop by
£5m between P3 & P4 indirects
category areas remain the highest
volume.
Non Competitive Transaction (NCTs) by
Value and Volume:
• Direct award rise slightly in the initial
quarter with engineering IPR the
biggest drive for DAs
Spend Under Contract:
• Contract register data quality issues
which are being resolved.

4

Direct Awards (Previously NCTs)

Spend Under Contract

Top 5 Financial Savings

Sum of
Financial

Top 5 Operational Hours Saved

Annual Hours

Page 371

4,250

Duplicate payments stopped by First
Strike software.

Various reporting improvements and
introductions such as periodic cost
£4,602,266.00 centre management have lead to
reduced time required by the business
to run these reports.

Saving of VS costs for workers who
have been successfully placed into
SAE following organisational change.

Automation of 27 payroll reports
£992,174.00 within SAP has reduced the amount of
interfaces and time taken to run and
reconcile the reports.

1,500

New NPL rate card implementation,
hiring at average point rather than
median.

The R2A team has implemented
various improvements in inherited
£600,000.00 processes such as VAT return and
balance sheet reporting which has
lead to reduced time input required.

1,100

Released budget by pausing or
reducing scope of captial projects
across BSF

H&S safety course - saving approx 3
£500,000.00 hours per session as session now
delivered virtually.

750

Improved due dilligence applied to the
end to end fare revenue controls, as a
result £250K in potential write offs
was saved.

£250,000.00 Welcome to TfL induction - saving
approx 3 hours per session as session
now delivered virtually.

720

Finance & Business Services Transformation (Transactional activities) – Staff cost savings

FY 2018/19
Cost £24.5m*
(*includes FSC, HRS, AP, MDM & HUB FBP)

FY £18.5
2020/21
Target FTE
savings of £7m

Cost £17.3m

FTE 367*

FTE 255

(*includes FSC & AP, MDM, HRS & HUB – FBP)

Page 372

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Selection of BAU Activities
HRS Help Desk
TfL Recruitment
L&D Delivered Training
People Analytics
Continuous Improvement
Invoice Processing
Revenue Assurance
Assets Accounting
General Ledger Activity
Payroll & Expenses
GLA – Financial Activities
Accounts Payable TFL & GLA

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Additional BAU Activities
Finance Help Desk
Master Data Management
All Finance Transactional Tasks
Finance Reporting
Portfolio Management
Vendor Registration

Additional COVID Activities
Furlough Claims - £58m
Stay learning launched
Right to work remote validation
Staff Travel Passes work around
Working from home mobilised

Please note the costs include the whole of BSF although HRS savings were recognised as part of the HR transformation

Agenda Item 14
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Register of Gifts and Hospitality for Members and Senior
Staff

This paper will be considered in public.
1

Summary

1.1

This paper sets out details of the gifts and hospitality declared by the Board and
senior staff. Details of those accepted by Members and the most senior staff are
routinely published on our website. In line with the Greater London Authority
(GLA) Group Framework Agreement, we submit a regular report to the
Committee on the gifts and hospitality accepted by Board Members and senior
staff. For these reports, we extend the staff covered to anyone on the top level
organisation chart published on https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/how-wework/corporate-governance/chief-officers.

1.2

This report covers a three-month reporting period, from 1 May to 31 July 2021.
The restrictions on travel and social distancing, to manage the coronavirus
pandemic, resulted in relatively few offers during this period. This also affects the
benchmarking data as the continuing situation does not relate to the previous
baselines for the same quarter in the previous year.

1.3

During the three months covered by this report, no declarations were made by
Members. A total of 15 declarations were made by senior staff, of which 11 were
declined and four were accepted.

2

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the paper.

3

Background

3.1

TfL’s policy on gifts and hospitality applies to TfL Board Members, all staff who
work for TfL and staff contracted to work for TfL including on advisory groups or
through a third party. It covers both gifts and hospitality offered directly or offered
through a spouse or partner.

3.2

The policy starts from the premise that any gifts or hospitality offered should
usually be declined. No offer should be accepted where there is a possibility, or a
perception, of being influenced by it. The guidance provides advice on the few
circumstances where acceptance might be appropriate but, as a guiding
principle, Members and staff are advised to err on the side of caution.
Acceptance of any offer requires line manager approval and an explanation as to
why acceptance is appropriate.

Page 373

3.3

The policy and guidance were last updated in November 2017. The operation of
the policy is part of a current internal audit review of governance arrangements.
The planned update of the policy and guidance, to make them consistent with
changes in the GLA’s policy (including) an increase in the declaration threshold
from £25 to £50, has been deferred so that it can address any recommendations
from the internal audit review.

3.4

Currently, Board Members and staff are required to register with the General
Counsel any offer of gift or hospitality received in connection with their official
duties that has a value of £25 or over, and the source of the offer. Staff make
declarations at the end of every month. As the acceptance of any offers of gifts
or hospitality by Members is uncommon, they are asked to confirm any
declarations at the end of every quarter. Offers accepted by Members and the
most senior staff are then reviewed and published on tfl.gov.uk on a quarterly
basis.

4

Reporting Period and Issues for Consideration

4.1

There were no declarations by Members during the three-month period from 1
May to 31 July 2021.

4.2

A total of 15 declarations of offers were made by senior staff in this period and
11 of these were declined and four were accepted.

4.3

For comparative purposes, the tables below show the number of offers made,
accepted and declined over three-month reporting periods, including a monthly
average. Table 1A shows the current period and the previous two periods. Table
1B shows the same reporting periods for the previous year. An accurate
comparison is difficult to make due to the impact of measures to control the
coronavirus pandemic.

4.4

The offers received and accepted have been reviewed to ensure they comply
with the policy and guidance. Where there are concerns that the policy or
guidance is not being followed, these are raised with the member of staff and
their line manager.
Table 1A: Figures for the current and two previous periods

Period reported
to Committee
Total offers
Total declined
Total accepted
Monthly average
Total offers
Total declined
Total accepted

01/11/2031/01/21
3 months

01/02/2130/04/21
3 months

01/05/2131/07/21
3 months

3 (5^)
3
0 (2^)

1 (5^)
1
0 (4^)

15
11
4

1
1
0

<1
<1
0

5
3
1.3

^ Offers were recorded but fall outside of the policy.

Page 374

Table 1B: Figures for the corresponding periods in the previous year

Period reported
to Committee
Total offers
Total declined
Total accepted
Monthly average
Total offers
Total declined
Total accepted

01/11/1931/01/20
3 months

01/02/2030/04/20
3 months

*01/05/2031/07/20
3 months

174
132
42

57
42
15

*-

58
44
14

19
14
5

-

*Coronavirus pandemic: No offers were received during this period and
figures for subsequent periods have been impacted by the measures to
control the spread of the virus.

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1 – Summary

List of Background Papers:
Corporate Gifts and Hospitality Register

Contact Officer:
Email:

Howard Carter, General Counsel
howardcarter@tfl.gov.uk

Page 375

[page left intentionally blank]

Gifts and Hospitality - TfL Senior Leadership Team - Appendix 1
1 May to 31 July 2021
Name of Officer

Offer Status

Donor/Provider of Gift/Hospitality

Detail of Gift/Hospitality

Reason for Accepting Gift / Hospitality

Date of Event/Hospitality

Byford Andy

Accepted

At Home with the Rudds - business in Hoxton

1 x candle and 1 x diffuser

Given during a site visit to small businesses ahead of Arch Day.
Subsequently donated in addition to a monetary donation to
charity

30/06/2021

Craig Graeme

Accepted

Mike Hood - U+I

Drinks

Networking

19/05/2021

Field Stephen

Accepted

Belinda Walsh, Conference & Marketing
Executive, SPS conferences

ESG & Impact Investing for Pension Funds virtual
conference

CPD

11/05/2021

Verma Shashi

Accepted

Cubic Transportation Systems UK Limited

Business lunch to catch up on changes in Cubic

To discuss recent changes in Cubic's corporate structure

13/07/2021

Page 377

[page left intentionally blank]

Agenda Item 15
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Enterprise Risk Update – Major Security Incident (ER4)

This paper will be considered in public
1

Summary

1.1

This paper provides an update of Enterprise Risk 4 (ER4) – Major Security
Incident, which is accurately defined within the current threat environment and
details the preventative and reactive controls and actions in place to manage our
response.

1.2

A paper is included on Part 2 of the agenda which contains exempt supplemental
information that is exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 7 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 in that it contains information relating to
action which might be taken in relation to prevention, investigation or prosecution
of a crime. Any discussion of that exempt information must take place after the
press and public have been excluded from this meeting.

2

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the paper and the exempt supplemental
information on Part 2 of the agenda.

3

Current Status

3.1

TfL is an operator and owner of critical national infrastructure and a key player in
the safety and security of London. We recognise the threat from deliberate,
intentional acts to harm TfL and London’s people, reputation and economy is
constant, evolving and increasingly significant in an unstable world. Financial
crime, cyber-crime, organised crime and the hostile actions of nation states are
becoming indistinguishable. We adopt a holistic and risk-based approach to
improve security and protect customers and our workforce from hostile and
deliberate actions that cause harm.

3.2

We work to identify existing and emerging security risks and seek to reduce our
vulnerability to terrorism, nation state hostile acts, extortion (through cyberattacks), organised financial crime such as fraud, blackmail, corruption,
espionage, sabotage and industrial scale theft. Our systematic approach to
protective security contributes to TfL’s and London’s sustainability.

3.3

Since the last update to the Committee meeting of 2 December 2020, we have
continued to develop ER4 through a series of workshops with security specialists,
business lead owners and external expert briefings on the current threat
landscape.

Page 379

3.4

ER4 has been developed to take a holistic approach to the security threats facing
TfL. ER4 defines a major security incident as the impact on TfL’s operations,
assets, customers, people, finances and reputation caused from an incident or
terrorism, sabotage, espionage, or serious financial crime. The scale and nature
of the impact is a combination of a failure to sufficiently identify and understand
the threats we face, or to recognise our vulnerabilities and seek to protect them, in
order to deter, delay and detect such criminal activity. The causes fall within four
broad categories: terrorism, sabotage, espionage and serious financial crime.

3.5

This update expands the potential causes, consequences and financial cost of a
major security incident happening, as well as the controls and actions in place to
mitigate. The updated ER4 risk now reflects the preventative and corrective
controls developed over the past 12 months.

3.6

These include a centralised Security Governance team and approach, which will
be responsible for the management of reporting and oversight of security matters
to the Executive Security Group which represents all business areas within TfL
and other forums to enable proportionate and effective decision making.

3.7

We recognise that everyone at TfL has a role to play in security and we actively
work to increase awareness, understanding and competence through security
training, briefings and acting on security communications.

3.8

ER4 provides oversight of the risk, causes, consequences and controls in place to
manage it. Detail of this work is presented in the paper on Part 2 of the agenda.

List of Appendices:
A paper containing exempt supplemental information is included on Part 2 of the
agenda.
Background Papers:
None

Contact Officer:
Email:

Siwan Hayward OBE, Director Compliance, Policing, Operations
and Security
siwan.hayward@tfl.gov.uk

Page 380

Agenda Item 16
Audit and Assurance Committee
Date:

15 September 2021

Item:

Members’ Suggestions for Future Discussion Items

This paper will be considered in public
1

Summary

1.1

This paper presents the current forward plan for the Committee and explains how
this is put together. Members are invited to suggest additional future discussion
items.

2

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the forward plan and is invited to raise any
suggestions for future discussion items.

3

Forward Plan Development

3.1

The Board and its Committees and Panels have forward plans. The content of the
plan arises from a number of sources:

3.2

(a)

standing items for each meeting: minutes; matters arising and actions list; and
any regular quarterly reports. For this Committee these include quarterly risk
and assurance reports; Elizabeth line programme assurance quarterly
updates; and IIPAG quarterly updates;

(b)

regular items (annual, half-year or quarterly) which are for review and
approval or noting: examples include the legal compliance report, integrated
assurance plan, and TfL annual report and accounts;

(c)

matters reserved for annual approval or review: examples include those
already mentioned above as well as annual audit fee; and

(d)

items requested by Members: the Deputy Chair of TfL and the Chair of this
Committee will regularly review the forward plan and may suggest items.
Other items will arise out of actions from previous meetings (including
meetings of the Board or other Committees and Panels) and any issues
suggested under this agenda item.

The Committee is required to meet in private, on an annual basis, with the Director
of Risk and Assurance, External Auditors and Chief Finance Officer. These
discussions are scheduled after the following Committee dates:
1 December 2021
16 March 2022

Director of Risk and Assurance
Chief Finance Officer

Page 381

4

Current Plan

4.1

The current plan is attached as Appendix 1. Like all plans, it is a snapshot in time
and items may be added, removed or deferred to a later date.

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1: Audit and Assurance Committee Forward Plan
List of Background Papers:
None

Contact Officer:
Email:

Howard Carter, General Counsel
howardcarter@tfl.gov.uk

Page 382

Audit and Assurance Committee Forward Plan 2021/22

Appendix 1

Membership: Anne McMeel (Chair), Dr Lynn Sloman MBE (Vice Chair), Cllr Julian Bell, Kay Carberry CBE, Dr Mee Ling Ng OBE
and Dr Nelson Ogunshakin OBE
Standing Items
Risk and Assurance Quarterly Report
Elizabeth Line Quarterly Assurance Update
Finance Control Environment Trend Indicators
IIPAG Quarterly Report
Register of Gifts and Hospitality

Page 383

Director of Risk and Assurance
Chief Finance Officer, Crossrail
Chief Finance Officer
Head of Project Assurance
General Counsel

Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

1 December 2021
External Audit Plan
EY Report on Non-Audit Fees
Annual Tax Compliance Update
Legal Compliance Report
Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures

EY
EY
Chief Finance Officer
General Counsel
EY

Annual
Six Monthly
Annual
Six Monthly
Update

16 March 2022
Integrated Assurance Plan 2022/23
Critical Accounting Policies
Personal Data Disclosure to Police and Other
Statutory Law Enforcement Agencies (2021)
Enterprise Risk Update – Governance and
Controls Suitability (ER13)

Director of Risk and Assurance
Chief Finance Officer
Director of Compliance, Policing,
Operations and Security
General Counsel

Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual

[page left intentionally blank]

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 385

Agenda Item 20

[page left intentionally blank]

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 387

[page left intentionally blank]

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 393

[page left intentionally blank]

Agenda Item 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 407

[page left intentionally blank]

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 409

[page left intentionally blank]

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 413

[page left intentionally blank]

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 415

[page left intentionally blank]

Agenda Item 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 417

[page left intentionally blank]

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 421

Agenda Item 23

[page left intentionally blank]

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 5, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 425

[page left intentionally blank]

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 429

[page left intentionally blank]

